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Treasurer’s Report Bl E#H &

Report of the Treasurer to the Council on the Group’s Financial Statements
for the Year ended 30 June 2022

Overview

Over the past year, the COVID-19 pandemic continued to put tremendous
pressure on the University’s operations. For example, few face-to-face
lectures could be arranged during the fourth and fifth waves of the
pandemic. International activities were also affected, as there were
restrictions or barriers to travel and some countries even experienced
lockdowns. Fortunately, with the help of technology, the University was
able to carry out most of its teaching and research activities online.

On the administration side, the University stepped up precautionary
measures, such as additional security and cleaning services to maintain
a safe campus for students and staff. On the financial side, the University
allocated additional resources in developing technology to facilitate
online teaching and further enhance education mobility. Even though
the last few pandemic-affected years have been challenging for the
University, it has still been able to maintain its financial strength to fulfil
its mission.

In 2021/22, at the University level, an overall net deficit of HKS31

million was recorded for the year, mainly incurred by University Grants
Committee (“UGC”)-funded activities. A small surplus was derived from
non-UGC-funded activities. At the Group level, the net deficit reduced
slightly to HKS$30 million offset by a small surplus of about HK$0.5 million
generated from The EAUHK Schools Limited (“Schools Limited”).

Operating Results and Financial Position

The Group adopted the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Statement of Recommended Practice (“SORP”) for
the UGC-funded Institutions in Hong Kong. Note 1 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements shows the details of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Income

The total income for the Group amounted to HKS$1.9 billion, lower than
that of last year by HKS$87 million.

At University level, total income for the year dropped to HK$1.84 billion,
HKS86 million or around 4.5% less compared to 2020/21. Tuition,
programmes and other University fees increased by HK$14 million,
mainly from non-UGC-funded programmes. Donations and benefactions
increased by about HKS$12 million to HK$104 million. Interest and net
investment income incurred a loss of about HKS$41 million against a

gain of HKS78 million last year. The substantial losses recorded in our
investment portfolios were mainly due to major corrections in the equity
market in fear of tight monetary policy and rapid increase in interest
rates in the United States and Europe which might result in global
recession and a fall in corporates’ profitability.
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At the subsidiary level, The EJUHK School of Continuing and EMBRENET L EEUEREMNERBEIZEH
Professional Education Limited (“SCPE”) received a small income 2R (I HESXHEER D EGEIERA - EEX
mainly derived from bank deposits, whilst the Schools Limited received BRTEHTER - BUHFAR - SRAEBRIDEHAR
government subventions and tuition fees of HK$61 million in total. ANT—BHEL REBFERARSELA -

The following diagrams show the breakdown of the total income of the TR AR AMIE IR
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Expenditure

Total expenditure incurred by the Group amounted to HK$1.93 billion,
an increase of around HKS$25 million as compared to that of last year.

At the University level, total expenditure increased by HK$24 million

to HKS$1.87 billion for the year. HKS$1.34 billion was spent on teaching,
learning and research, equivalent to 72% of total expenditure. The
increase of HKS14 million against last year was mainly due to the
increase in the spending on central computing facilities to support
research capacity, online teaching and other virtual learning activities
such as summer training camp. The University continued to maintain a
high ratio of expenditure on teaching, learning and research to uphold
its core mission.

Forinstitutional support, an increase of HK$10 million compared to
2020/21 was recorded. The major increase came from the premises

and related expenses as special measures in strengthening the security
and hygiene on the campus, in response to the pandemic, as well as
improvements to the University’s facilities. While student extra-curricular
activities could only be carried out online, the University continued to
provide sufficient funding to support student activities and ensure the
safe environment in student halls.

At the subsidiary level, small expenditure related to administrative
services provided by the University was recorded by SCPE, while the
Schools Limited incurred a total expenditure of HKS61 million, which
was mainly for staff costs.

The following diagram shows the breakdown of the total expenditure of
the University:
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Financial Position

The University’s total net assets decreased from HKS$1.59 billion to
HKS1.56 billion at the end of 2021/22. As also reflected in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income, the losses from the investment portfolios
were the main factor that reduced the value of the University’s assets.
During the year, new funding was injected into the portfolios to capture
the opportunities in the investment market. As a result, the bank
deposits with original maturity of over three months decreased by
HKS448 million to HK$941 million, whereas cash and cash equivalents
increased by HK$375 million to HKS769 million as at the end of the year.
Theincrease in cash and cash equivalents was a result of anticipation
of a further increase in interest rates in the coming period, and thus
deposits with shorter tenors were made pending, to give a better chance
of obtaining a higher interest rate.

The total balance of the General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”)
lowered to HK$537 million at the end of the year.

Outlook

There are uncertainties and challenges ahead for the University: the
prolonged pandemic will affect the resumption of its normal teaching
and research activities carried out locally and globally; the declining
population of school age will hinder the development of teaching
programmes; the high emigration rate will lead to difficulty in recruiting
talent; and the high inflation and interest rate environment, as well as
tight monetary policy, may trigger recession for the economy, which
will have an impact on the University’s funding position. Over the past
few years, the University put in much effort and resources to improve
information technology and cyber security to sustain online teaching
activities. In addition, a new academic building was approved to be
built on the campus, which would further support the application

and integration of educational technology, pedagogy and interactive
learning.

Looking ahead, the University is facing many hurdles. Nevertheless, with

a solid financial foundation, and accumulated funds of HK$1.56 billion at
the end of the year, the University will be able to minimise the impact of

the factors mentioned above on its operations and financial position.

Ms Imma LING Kit-sum
Treasurer
The Council of The Education University of Hong Kong

23 September 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #% i Eh R &

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of

The EFaucation University of Hong Kong

(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Faucation University of
Hong Kong Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Education
University of Hong Kong (“the University”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 10 to 75, which comprise the Consolidated
and University Statements of Financial Position as at 30 June 2022, the
Consolidated and University Statements of Comprehensive Income,

the Consolidated and University Statements of Changes in Funds and
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group and the University as at
30 June 2022 and of their financial performance and the Group’s cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Council of the University is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information included in the
financial report, other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover

the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of

The Faucation University of Hong Aong (Continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Eaucation University of
Hong Kong Ordinarnce)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Council for the consolidated
financial statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council is
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Council intends
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging its
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 15 of The Education University of
Hong Kong Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of

The Faucation University of Hong Kong (Continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Eaucation University of
Hong Kong Ordinance)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Council.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial

information of the entities or business activities within the Group

to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We

are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the Group. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of

The Faucation University of Hong Aong (Continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Eaucation University of
Hong Kong Ordinarnce)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

23 September 2022
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG BHEH B K&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B B B &85 - BTE 2 8BLB B R E[L)

Statements of Financial Position B ¥ AR R 3=

At30June2022 —E£-—%FxA=+H

Group &M University # X

2022 2021 2022 2021
Note $°000 §°000 $°000 §’000
Hiat Fr T Fr Tt
Non-current Assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - s s 3 1,753,350 1,719,628 1,742,947 1,709,053
Investments & 4 7,020 8,063 7,020 8,063
Financial assets measured at R HEK AT ER
amortised cost SRIE E 5 9,137 9,145 9,137 9,145
1,769,507 1736836 1,759,104 1,726,261
Current Assets REBEE
Contract assets AHEE 7 28,842 27,357 28,842 27,357
Accounts receivable, deposits FEUERR - &
and prepayments K FE F0E 8 89,576 94,886 88,984 94,813
Financial assets measured at EARBER AER
fair value through profit or loss KR E E 9 541,453 467,893 541,453 467,893
Bank deposits with original [REEARERE=1EH
maturity over three months 2 ERTER 6 941,867 1,389,871 941,184 1,389,188
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEBY 10 795,952 421,556 769,270 394,208
2,397,690 2,401,563 2,369,733 2,373,459
Current Liabilities REBAE
Contract liabilities aHaE 7 81,259 70,018 79,843 68,264
Accounts payable and accruals FEAT AR SR K FEE TR 11 182,616 164,475 168,635 150,289
Provision for employee benefits 1E BT B 12 125,399 123,584 125,198 123,419
Deferred income B A 13 436,598 444 650 436,111 4437715
825,872 802,727 809,787 785,687
Net Current Assets REEERE 1,571,818 15983836 1,559,946 1,587,772
Total Assets Less Current wEERABARS
Liabilities 3,341,325 3,335,672 3,319,050 3,314,033
Non-current Liabilities EREBEE
Provision for employee benefits & B & T B 12 18,617 17,904 18,617 17,904
Deferred capital funds BIEEARES 14 1,750,386 1,715,312 1,740,209 1,705,256
1,769,003 1733216 1,758,826 1,723,160
Net Assets EEFE 1,572,322 1,602,456 1,560,224 1,590,373
Funds 2
UGC funds HESEPES 15 670,380 127,995 670,380 127,995
Restricted funds ETES 16 168,328 141,848 168,328 141,848
Other funds HmEe 17 733,614 732,613 721,516 721,030
Total Funds Eou@m 1,572,322 1,602,456 1,560,224 1,590,873

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 23 September 2022. REEHR T =ZFNA =+ = BIE RIRRER LI RE ©
Dr David WONG Yau-kar, GBS, JP Ms Imma LING Kit-sum
BEREELT  2EHEE KTt BBELZE
Chairman of the Council REE X E Treasurer @&
Prof Stephen CHEUNG Yan-leung, SBS, JP, Mr Chaddy WONG Kam-chiu
RIECREE  REFESE - AT EHHRBAE
Officier dans 'Ordre des Palmes Académiques ARG HHABE EERERNE Director of Finance #% & B &
President iR &

The notes on pages 14 to 75 form part of these consolidated financial statements. F 14 F 75 BB BAA & B B IRE A —E 7 -
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B # & A2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 B &#BF5N - BT & BB M 81 )

Statements of Comprehensive Income ZHIz= 3k
For the Year Ended 30 June 2022 BE =T —F~A=+HILFE

Group &M University # X

2022 2021 2022 2021
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
it Fx Tt Fx Tt
Income ON
Government subventions B RESR 19 1,241,812 1248879 1,192,998 1,200,415
Tuition, programmes and other fees 2% « FI2FIH Uk E 20 539,057 525,303 528,709 514,385
Donations and benefactions BB 21 104,553 91,929 104,304 91,827
Auxiliary services B B AR 7% 22 25,877 18,512 26,237 18,625
Interest and net investment T BRI E
(loss)/income (B1E) Mk 23 (40,806) 77,704 (40,832) 77,621
Otherincome HibUg A 33,241 28,133 31,908 26,844
1,903,734 1990460 1,843,324 1,929,717
Expenditure i 24
Teaching, learning and research HE - B LR
Teaching and research EE NS 1,155,775 1,151,700 1,098,165 1,095,358
Library BlEEE 62,609 61,874 62,609 61,874
Central computing facilities AR B R 111,397 102,919 111,397 102,919
Other academic services H Ath 22907 fr 7% 71,411 69,259 71,411 69,259
Institutional support HETE
Management and general ERR—MEIR 112,574 111,946 112,303 111,738
Premises and related expenses e REER Y 306,109 296,739 304,095 294,704
Student and general B4R —RHE RS
education services 113,993 114,108 113,993 114,108
1,933,868 1908545 1,873,973 1,849,960
(Deficit)/surplus and total HBAAEE (FB) Bt
comprehensive income for the RE2HEWRBEE
year before transfers (30,134) 81,915 (30,649) 79,757
Transfer (from)/to #5082
UGC funds HESEPHS 15 (31,223) 604 (31,223) 604
Restricted funds ETES 16 88 149 88 149
Other funds EmES 17 1,001 81,162 486 79,004

(30,134) 81,915 (30,649) 79,757

A segment report showing the income and expenditure of the Group and ~ AEBRMAEARBHEEDZE ((HEG D EPL

the University under UGC-funded and Non-UGC-funded operations is FEHESEMBTHNHERE - SEN AT BIREKM
presented in Note 18 of the financial statements. RN
The notes on pages 14 to 75 form part of these consolidated financial statements. F 14 ZF 75 HBINT it I8 A bm & B B2 49— 317 -

EHERBEARE 2021/2022 115 S 11



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B B A2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 B #BF5N - AT & BB M 881 )

Statements of Changes in Funds E&# 8%

Forthe Year Ended 30 June 2022 &2 - - —FNA=-+tHIFE

Group 58

UGC funds Restrictedfunds ~ Other funds Total
BEGERHES EBEES HibE S e
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Tt Tt Tt Fr
(Note 15) (Note 16) (Note 17)
(Bfa15) (Kiat 16) (Kiat17)
Balance at 1 July 2020 R-ZBE-_ZEF LA —HWNER 709,085 160,005 651,451 1,520,541
Transfer from statement of & E 2 HEWa K
comprehensive income 604 149 81,162 81,915
Inter-fund transfer E LR 18,306 (18,306) - =
Balance at30 June 2021 R=-ZE-——F;xA=1H
and at 1 July 2021 R—Z-—-FtA-HNER 727,995 141,848 732,613 1,602,456
Transfer (to)/from statement ¥ (Z) /B 2 ERER
of comprehensive income (31,223) 88 1,001 (30,134)
Inter-fund transfer 2o EER (26,392) 26,392 - -
Balance at30 June 2022 R-ZE-—FXA=1THWERF 670,380 168,328 733,614 1,572,322

University #X

UGC funds Restrictedfunds ~ Other funds Total
HEGEHES EBEES HibE g e
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T T
(Note 15) (Note 16) (Note 17)
(Bfz15) (Kiat 16) (Ktat17)
Balance at 1 July 2020 R-ZBE-_ZEF LA —HNER 709,085 160,005 642,026 1,511,116
Transfer from statementof ~ E#E 2K
comprehensive income 604 149 79,004 79,757
Inter-fund transfer H e MR 18,306 (18,306) - -
Balance at30 June 2021 R=-ZE—-——FxA=1H
and at 1 July 2021 k—2-—FtA-HNERF 727,995 141,848 721,030 1,590,873
Transfer (to)/from statement & (2) /B2 EKER
of comprehensive income (31,223) 88 486 (30,649)
Inter-fund transfer ¢ EER (26,392) 26,392 - -
Balance at30 June 2022 R-ZE-—FXA=+HMWERF 670,380 168,328 721,516 1,560,224
The notes on pages 14 to 75 form part of these consolidated financial statements. F 14 F 75 AR 1B A & B IR &K ) — 3617 ©
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B # & A2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 B &#BF5N - BT & BB M 81 )

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 8B EHRER

Forthe Year Ended 30 June 2022 &= - - —FNA=-+tHIFE

Note $°000 $°000
it Fr Tt
Cash flows from operating activities EETHNRESRE
Cash generated from operations EEEFENRSE 27(a) (}F) 45,513 50,665
Net cash generated from operating activities EERPELR TR 45,513 50,665
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNRERE
Purchase of property, plantand equipment ~ BE® - #as MR (168,416) (84,040)
Purchase of financial assets measured REREA N EER AR
at fair value through profit or loss B Al E B (140,576) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - S RRIBAISEUE
plant and equipment 4 -
Net decrease/(increase) in bank deposits [REI gﬁ \E{ﬁﬁ‘i@ffﬂ 2 TE B
with original maturity over three months TFRORD, (3Em) 448,004 (543,250)
Redemption of financial assets at BRI ABE AR
fair value through profit or loss WEREE 50 50
Interest received BUFIE 9,832 18,429
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFBES(FTA)H&FHE
investing activities 148,898 (608,811)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHHRERE
Grants and donations received for additions ~ AMEEYIE - #aE K&
of property, plant and equipment FTISeO 1R B & R AR AK 27(b)(2) 179,985 95,605
Net cash generated from financing activities ~ BYE REIPTISIR & FHE 179,985 95,605
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and e RESEEYHEM
cash equivalents Om2) 38 374,396 (462,541)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUNHE LREEEY
beginning of the year 421,556 884,097
Cash and cash equivalents at the FrOReRLEEY
end of the year 10 795,952 421,556

The notes on pages 14 to 75 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

F 14 75 BRI B A AR B A ) — a8 -
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG BHEH B K&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br 5 G & BHS) + FT B £ 8L B BE7)

Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R

1.2

14

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial
statements also comply with Statement of Recommended Practice
(“SORP”) for the University Grants Committee (“UGC”)-Funded
Institutions in Hong Kong. Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that

are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the University. Note 1.3
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

The Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-UGC-
funded activities (‘CAGs”), as stipulated in the UGC Notes on
Procedures and a disclosure requirement under SORP, is reflected
in the segment report in Note 18.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2022 comprise the University and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as “the Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise

stated in the accounting policies set out below. The preparation
of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenditure. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, orin the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2021/2022
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB BASN - BT B 2 88LB B R E)

1.4
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Change in accounting standards

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and
the University. None of the developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial position of the
Group and the University for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised gains arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the University’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses (see Note
1.7), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (orincluded
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Translation of foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Group initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was measured.

1
1.3

1.4

1.5
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 1.7).

Construction in progress represents buildings and other property,
plant and equipment under construction and is stated at cost

less any impairment losses (see Note 1.7), and is not depreciated.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

The cost of a property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the statement of comprehensive income
in the period in which itis incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is calculated
to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings 50 years or the unexpired
period of the lease,
whichever is shorter

3to5years

7 years or the unexpired
period of the lease,
whichever is shorter

- Fixtures and equipment
- Leasehold improvements

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted, if appropriate, annually.

The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2021/2022
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG BB B K&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB BASN - BT B 2 88LB B R E)

1  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FEEMHRBMEE)
1.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets 1.7 FEEBEBEREERE
(a)  Creditlosses from financial instruments and contract assets (F) kEeMIAREGNEENEEBE

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) on financial assets carried at amortised cost
and contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see Note 1.9).

Financial assets measured at fair value, including fixed
income securities, equities and investment in unlisted unit
trust, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

- Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for fixed-rate financial
assets, accounts and other receivables and contract
assets are discounted using the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof, where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br 5 G & BHS) + FT B £ 8L B BE7)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(a)  Creditlosses from financial instruments and contract assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for accounts and other receivables
and contract assets are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted

for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at

the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations

to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is 12 months past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
afinancial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB BASN - BT B 2 88LB B R E)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

1 FTEEFBRBE(AE

1.7 FEERREERE(A)

(a)  Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount

is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the
statement of comprehensive income. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
contract asset is written off (either partially or in full) to
the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which the
recovery occurs.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(b)  Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that property, plant and equipment and investments in
subsidiaries in the statement of financial position may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased. If any such indication
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific to

the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

Animpairment loss is recognised in the statement

of comprehensive income if the carrying amount

of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit

(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

Animpairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the statement of comprehensive
income in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG BB B K&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB BASN - BT B 2 88LB B R E)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s policies for investments in financial assets, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are set out below.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) for which transaction costs are
recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

(@)  Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method (see Note 1.15).

- fair value at FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

(b)  Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment, the Group makes
an irrevocable election to designate the investment at
FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in

fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 1.15.
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Notes to the Financial Statements | B1# & ks
THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B # B A £

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br 5 G & BHS) + FT B £ 8L B BE7)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.9 Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises income

(see Note 1.15) before being unconditionally entitled to the

consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy
set outin Note 1.7(a) and are reclassified to receivables when the
right to the consideration has become unconditional (see Note

1.10).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related income (see Note 1.15). A contract liability would also

be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related income. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised

(see Note 1.10).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset

or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,

contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are

not presented on a net basis.

1.10 Accounts and other receivables

Areceivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional

right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If income has been

recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset (see

Note 1.9).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest

method less allowance for credit losses (see Note 1.7(a)).

1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three

months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are

assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in Note
1.7(a).
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B# B K £

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB BASN - BT B 2 88LB B R E)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.12 Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at

cost.

1.13 Employee benefits

(a)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and development
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for unutilised
annual leave and development leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Superannuation scheme

The University has set up a superannuation scheme
(“the Scheme”) to provide its employees with benefits on
retirement or termination of employment.

Members of the Scheme contribute 5% of their basic
monthly salaries to the Scheme and benefits are paid to
them on their retirement or on leaving employment subject
to certain conditions as stipulated in the Scheme’s trust
deed. Contributions to the Scheme are expensed as incurred
and other than those monthly contributions, the University
has no further obligation for the payment of termination or
retirement benefits to its employees.

Mandatory provident fund scheme

The Group has established mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the
MPF scheme are held in separate trustee-administered
funds. Both the Group and the employees are required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a statutory maximum requirement per employee per month.
The Group’s contribution to the MPF scheme is expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements | B1# & ks
THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG B#HE B K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br 5 G & BHS) + FT B £ 8L B BE7)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.14 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the University has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision
is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a separate asset is
recognised for any expected reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. The amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited
to the carrying amount of the provision.

1.15 Income recognition

Income is classified by the Group when it arises from the provision
of services or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Income is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the
asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the Group
is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Further details of the Group’s income recognition policies are as
follows:

Recurrent subventions and grants are recognised as income over
the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which
they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis, based on
the assumption that the conditions of the recurrent subventions
can be met.
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B# B K £

Notes to the Financial Statements | B3R & HsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB BASN - BT B 2 88LB B R E)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.15 Income recognition (Continued)

Government subventions and grants, which are earmarked for
specific purposes, are initially recognised as deferred income when
there is a reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attached to it and that the subventions will be received.
They are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on
a systematic basis to match with the related costs for which they
are intended to be used.

Government subventions and grants, and donations with specific
purposes spent on capital expenditure are recorded as deferred
capital funds and are released and credited to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets when the assets are putin use, to
the extent of the related depreciation expense for that period.

Grants from government agencies for courses are recognised when
services are provided and complied with the conditions attached
to it. They are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income over the duration of the related courses.

Tuition, programmes and other fees, and auxiliary services income
are recognised over the period of the courses or services to which
they are related.

Donations in cash and cash equivalents or other investment
instruments for general purposes are recognised as income at
fairvalues when it is probable that they will be received, which
is generally upon their receipt. Donations with specific purposes
designated by the donors are initially recognised as deferred
income when received, and then recognised as income to the
extent of their related expenditure incurred during the year.

Interestincome is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis.
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B # B A £

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br 5 G & BHS) + FT B £ 8L B BE7)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.16 Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contractis, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(a) Asalessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises

a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less

and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into

a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B# B K £

Notes to the Financial Statements | B3R & HsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB BASN - BT B 2 88LB B R E)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.16 Leased assets (Continued)
(@)  Asalessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’ estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

(b)  Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

1.17 Related parties

(a)  Aperson,oraclose member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) hascontrol orjoint control over the Group;
(i) hassignificantinfluence over the Group; or

(i) isamember of the key management personnel of the
Group.

(b)  Anentityis related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

() Theentity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
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1

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.17 Related parties (Continued)

28

(b)  Anentityis related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Financial risk and fund risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

(a)  Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group conducts its operation in Hong Kong with
its transactions denominated in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”). The Group derives its operation income
mainly in HKD. The Group’s foreign currency exposures
arise mainly from and are substantially limited to

the exchange rate movements between HKD and
United States dollars (“USD”) because most of the
financial assets held under treasury investments and
cash balances which are subject to foreign exchange
movements are denominated in USD.
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Notes to the Financial Statements | 13§ R & Kis:

THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B # & A2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 B &#BF5N - BT & BB M 81 )

2 Financialrisk and fund risk management (Continued) 2 BIHEREESEAKRETE(E)

2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 2.1 HM¥KRKBEEE)
(a)  Market risk (Continued) () MBERE
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (=) SNERS (&)
The following table details the Group’s and the TRFAVNAEBRBAREE B IA
University’s major exposure at the end of the reporting HEERBNIEEE AN E MG
period to currency risk arising from recognised assets ENEEREEXBBEREENE
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than EEBREREE - KHEINR R
the functional currency of the entity to which they BAERIRGEEANRGE R
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the B WABKEDIR -

exposure are shown in HKD, translated using the spot
rate at the end of the reporting period.

Group and University &~&EBERHA

United States Australian  Canadian Pounds  Switzerland ~ European  Japanese
Dollars  Renminbi Dollars Dollars Sterling Franc Dollars Yen
ey AR RIT MEXT g IR BT A
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T T T
2022 —E_CF
Accounts receivable, R - e
deposits and RIERFTIE
prepayments 21,005 30 511 - 29 - 1,110 681
Financial assets BROABETA
measured at fair BREOLH
value through profit BE
or loss 466,708 1,567 2,002 2,411 6,739 - 28,631 6,638
Bank deposits with REIEHB®EB
original maturity =EAZER
over three months £ 9,793 - - = - - - -
Cash and cash Aekis
equivalents ) 3,795 108 46 8 6 169 47 -
Accounts payable and R BR R R ERT
accruals E] (1,592) (1,496) (605) (503) (11) - (66) (73)
Net exposure arising EHEREEM
from recognised BEMEEN
assets and liabilities R AE 499,709 209 1,954 1,916 6,763 169 29,722 7,246
2021 ZBC-F
Accounts receivable, MRS - e
deposits and RIERHIE
prepayments 994 - - 22 - 716 432
Financial assets BROAEETA
measured at fair b 0t
value through profit BE
orloss 413,814 = 2,551 2411 1,553 1,065 21,365 5,592
Bank deposits with RIARER
original maturity =EAZES
over three months pez=d 40,955 - - - - -
Cash and cash Rekiie
equivalents =@y 19,875 7 50 336 6 - 53
Accounts payable FERT RN R ERT
and accruals o] (468) (635) (10) (337) - - V) (73)
Net exposure arising EHREEN
from recognised BEMELHN
assets and liabilities JEN gt 475,170 (628) 2,591 2,432 1,559 L8l 21,848 3318

EEHBERE 20212022 81 5HE 29
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2 Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued) 2 BAHERREEEKREIE(E)

2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 2.1 MBEBEEA)
(@)  Marketrisk (Continued) () mHBEERE)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (—) SNERKR ()

Sensitivity analysis BRRE DM
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRITAEERAARNFEEE,
change in the Group’s and University’s deficit/surplus BHRECRAEASEMEATEX
for the year and funds that would arise if foreign [E B B E RN AEE A 2 S8 (R P
exchange rates to which the Group and the University B E At L S A RS N ) T BRS
have significant exposure at the end of the reporting BHVEIE - Bt 5 - AEE KRR
period had changed at that date, assuming all other ETREMEENTMEEZSY
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is A& 7 T B 2K T A B B2 0E SRR K
assumed that the pegged rate between HKD and USD ékﬂ’]%% Heh HMAKRLD
would be materially unaffected by any changes in BTIEXINEXZHNTE - ZH
movement in value of USD against other currencies. TRE-_ZF-_—FHRAMNEEMmE
Other components of funds would not be affected by HH] e

changes in the foreign exchange rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2021.

Group and University Z<&EERHK

2022 2021
Decrease/ (increase)
Increase/ (decrease) in deficitand  Increase/ (decrease)
in foreign exchange  increase/ (decrease)  inforeign exchange  Increase/ (decrease)
rates in funds rates  insurplus and funds
EERD,(3Em) BERNES
= A (FBE) RESEM CHL) R FF(TBE) i,/ Ca )
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Renminbi AR 5% 10 5% (31)
(5)% (10) (5)% 31
Australian Dollars BT 5% 98 5% 130
(5)% (98) (5)% (130)
Canadian Dollars mEXT 5% 96 5% 122
(5)% (96) (5)% (122)
Pounds Sterling S 5% 338 5% 78
(5)% (338) (5)% (78)
Switzerland Franc ~ EEJERP 5% 8 5% 89
(5)% (8) (5)% (89)
European Dollars BT 5% 1,486 5% 1,092
(5)% (1,486) (5)% (1,092)
Japanese Yen Shiv 5% 362 5% 276
(5)% (362) (5)% (276)
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2 Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued)

2.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(a)  Marketrisk (Continued)

(if)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
interest-bearing financial assets held under treasury
investments, which are reviewed on a regular basis in
accordance with the Group’s policies and guidelines.

Based on the sensitivity analysis performed at 30

June 2022, if interest rates on variable rate interest-
bearing bank deposits had been 50 basis points

higher or 25 basis points lower with all other variables
held constant, deficit for the year would have been
$1,022,000 lower (2021: surplus for the year would
have been $1,033,000 higher) or $2,000 higher (2021:
surplus for the year would have been $2,000 lower)
respectively, as a result of higher/lower interest income
on bank deposits.

Price risk

Price risk refers to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss. The Group
is not exposed to commodity price risk. The equity
price risk of the investment is managed by reputable
professional investment managers through their in-
house risk management, risk analytical systems

and on-going monitoring controls. In addition, the
investment managers follow the Group’s investment
guidelines to diversify the equity price risk in different
geographical locations and industry segments. The
Group also monitors the risk exposure by carrying out
appropriate assessments on the investment strategies
and reviews on periodic reports from the investment
managers from time to time.

Notes to the Financial Statements | B3R & HsE
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ﬁ%ﬁ:?::iﬁﬂi+aﬁﬁ
WEREDIT - BRELUFEF X

EE’JfEﬁT‘mB‘ﬁFI JZ= EF 501 I%%ﬁ
BTNk 25 (8 Z Bh i T A E b B
B AIZFENEBESEREA
RITIF A F E'Hﬁl/\iﬂ/Tﬁ%ﬁﬁ

2 BIFERER 4> 1,022,000 0 (= F

F: ZEENAAREEIENN1,033,000
JL)BIEN2,000 0 (ZEZ—F : 3%
FEMNAHAEZE L 2,0007T) °

B8 E R

BREHRRIREFESERIZA
AEEYERBBREREENR
ERE - BAERUEAZHRE
ERR - REERRABBEERLT
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2 Financialrisk and fund risk management (Continued) 2 BIHEREESEAKRETE(£)

2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 2.1 B¥KERBEEE)
(@)  Marketrisk (Continued) () mBEE &
(i) Pricerisk (Continued) (=) EREERE)

As at 30 June 2022, the carrying amounts of equity RZEBE__FXA=+H ' x%H&
investments classified as financial assets at fair value BREALEEFAEZNRER
through profit or loss held by the Group in different BRHEERR S MinMEESED
regions are analysed and are listed in the following > WHIH TR

tables:

Group and University NEBRH K

2022 2021
$’000 $°000
T Tt
United States EH 35,091 44 575
Europe BOM 129,083 95,317
Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong and Japan K@ - FE N B ARSI 3,064 2,551
Hong Kong B 36,039 18,107
Japan =F:N 1,276 -
Total k] 204,553 160,550
As the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the REEH ERENES AT
respective equity investments had been 5% higher/lower, BR5% » FEE AL — A B R R IG ME
with all other variables held constant, the Group’s deficit TEHBERLT  AZEENEER
for the year would have been decreased/increased by W 010,228,000 (ZF = —
$10,228,000 (2021: surplus for the year would have been F:RFEORGEL MR
increased/decreased by $8,028,000). 8,028,000 7T) ©
(b)  Creditrisk (2,) EERRE
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on ERRRIEERZENERANEEME
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the BARSBEEAMBERZER -
Group.
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its deposits FEBENEERREZRE EFRERT
and cash at banks, accounts receivable, contract assets and Re - BURENR  GHEERSBEEDN
investment balances with financial institutions. There are REE - AEBARTEIRF AR B
procedures in place to mitigate the risk and the exposures to g mMERETERETVEREERR
these credit risks are monitored closely by the management BOHEE o

on an ongoing basis.
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2 Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued)

2.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(b)

Creditrisk (Continued)

Accounts receivable in respect of tuition fees are receivable
by due dates preset every year according to the academic
calendar. The Group has a policy of withholding the issue

of academic documents to students to enhance the quality
of accounts receivable. The credit risk in investment
balances with financial institutions and deposits and cash

at banks are considered limited and expected credit loss is
immaterial because the counterparties are mainly banks
and financial institutions with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. For banks and
financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a
minimum Moody’s rating of “A” are accepted. The University
has no significant concentration of credit risk and the risk
exposure is diversified over a large number of counterparties.
The University has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any single financial institution.

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts receivable
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs as
set outin Note 1.7(a).

The Group assessed that there is no significant loss
allowance in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 30 June 2021
and 2022.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements regularly to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
inthe short and longer term.

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to
meet liabilities as and when they fall due, and it results
from mismatch of assets and liabilities. The Group performs
regular projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity
risk to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding
requirements could be met. Prudent liquidity management
alsoincludes maintaining adequate credit facilities in the
Group’s approved banks.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the University’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balance
for accounts payable, accruals and provision for gratuities
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

Notes to the Financial Statements | B3R & HsE
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2 Financialrisk and fund risk management (Continued) 2 BIHEREESEAKRETE(£)

2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 2.1 B¥KERBEEE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (A) mEEcRER &
Group &5£E
Over 1 year
Within  but within
1year 2 years Over?2years Total
HBiE 1
1R B2FR 2EUE #aFE
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000
Tt FT FT Tt
At 30 June 2022 R-ZE-_—FXA=t+H
Accounts payable, accruals and others FEfTEREX - FESTEIE R E 177,132 250 155 177,537
Provision for gratuities KO B B4 32,746 16,658 1,959 51,363
209,878 16,908 2,114 228,900
At 30 June 2021 R-E-_—FXA=t+H
Accounts payable, accruals and others FETBESR - FEET B R E At 159,643 500 250 160,393
Provision for gratuities KBS B 29,226 16,068 1,836 47,130

188,869 16,568 2,086 207,523

University # X

Over 1 year
Within  but within
1 year 2 years Qver2years Total
HBiE 14
1R B2FA 2F A E 4agE
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
At 30 June 2022 R=-ZB=-—FXA=+H
Accounts payable, accruals and others FEfTBREX - FEETEIE & H A 163,162 250 155 163,567
Provision for gratuities KO B 14 32,746 16,658 1,959 51,363
195,908 16,908 2,114 214,930
At 30 June 2021 R=-ZB-—FXA=1+H
Accounts payable, accruals and others FEfTERZX - FEETIE R H At 145,468 500 250 146,218
Provision for gratuities K& B 29,226 16,068 1,836 47,130

174,694 16,568 2,086 193,348
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2 Financialrisk and fund risk management (Continued) 2 BIHEREESEAKETE(£)
2.1 BiBREBEER(E)
(T) AREEE

TREIIARHELEANERT B RAE
BFfENERTE  WI(EBHMBHREE

2.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)
(d)  Fairvalues measurement

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
and the University’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised BIDE R - [AABEZFTE]I FIRAEN
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS AABERBSER=MERA - 2REE
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value FFERSEMETEME ARG H
measurement is classified, is determined with reference to RUEREEUMOBEREEER - L5
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the LI

valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level

linputsi.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
foridentical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

E-iEE: EEAE-RBAT
ZHBMAAE - DR B AR
1R B R B T8 0 R A
AL -

F_MHE: ERAEF_FBATLE
AAEMNRAAE BAEEMNE A
LE - HREmEE R EN
BOINBREATAIBRNE AT
o MNABRBATERENSH
IRHBATTE ©

FE=MMHE: ERBEATTEBEH
AR ENAAE -

Fair value measurements AR EEHE

Group and University #~&£@ER A

2022 2021
Levell Level2 Level3 Total  Llevell  Level2  Level3 Total
F-EBH F-Ef E=ER #E F-Ef  F-BLR EZER ©E
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T Fr T T T T T Fr
Investment: RE:
- Investments in R BRI
institutional entities HRE - - 7,020 7,020 - - 8,063 8,063
Financial assets measuredat  FRAEEFTA
fairvalue through BRNeR
profitorloss: BE:
-Fixedincomesecurities  -ElE4iAE%H 335,751 - - 335,751 305,908 - - 305,908
- Equities - 204,553 - - 204,553 160,550 - - 160,550
- Investment in -JEEMENL
unlisted unit trust EatiE& - 1,149 - 1,149 - 1,435 - 1,435
540,304 1,149 7,020 548,473 466,458 1,435 8,063 475,956
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2 Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued) 2 BAHERREEEKREIE(E)
2.1 B¥KERBEEE)
(T) BrEEFZ(Z

2.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(d)  Fairvalues measurement (Continued)

During the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2022, there were
no transfers between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2,

or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at
the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The fair value of investment in unlisted unit trust in Level

2 is determined by the number of unit trust held by the
Group times its indicative market value as at the end of the
reporting period.

The fair value of investments in institutional entities in Level
3is determined by the percentage of interest held by the
Group times the net assets of the entities. The significant
unobservable inputincludes the attributable net asset
values and the fair value increases with the increase in the
attributable net asset values.

The movement during the period in the balance of these
Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

HE_T-_—FRk-_F-__FA=+H
IFFEAR AEETESBRTAEAAE
EF—HE_ERIMEXERE  RFE=
WAL  c AEENBEREAAE
EEABELHRERNREHEERER
B -

N RFE_MEENFLTEMETRE
MAREE REUARBEREREBARE
FERE BB FRATSLEBIRREE

BN REMEENRRBRBERENR

AEE EARKERGEEBAFNEDS
FUABRNOFEENRRETE - TABRNE
AEEBERGEESE BERAREER
BB EFEMIEINMIE N -

F=RTRMITEERNEHOT -

Group and University Z&EBERHK

Balance at 1 July 2021/2020

R=
Loss recognised in the statements E’\\%EH& SR MR 1R
of comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2022/2021 R —F /T -—FNA=+HNEF

Any gain or loss arising from the fair value remeasurements
in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is recognised in the

statements of comprehensive income for both the Group and

the University.
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2.3

Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued)
Fund risk management

The University is a government subvented education institution
established under the laws of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR”), which main objectives are to provide studies
and training in teacher education and facilities for research into
and the development of education. The University is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements, except as stated in
Note 16, and its activities are mainly funded by government grants
and tuition fees, the spending of which is governed by the UGC
Notes on Procedures and other grant conditions. The University’s
activities are also funded by donations and funds generated from
self-financing activities.

The various restricted and other funds represent the unspent
balance of such grants, income, donations and other specific
purpose funds. These funds are managed according to the
relevant grant and funding conditions, where applicable, and the
University’s investment and financial management guidelines
and procedures with the view of meeting the objectives of the
University.

None of the University’s subsidiaries are subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements and their capital management
policies are governed by their own financial management
guidelines and procedures with the view of safeguarding the
subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern.

Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provision of receivables and
payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fairvalue of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments, unless the effect of discounting will be
immaterial.

2.3
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3. Property, plant and equipment 3 Y% MR
Leasehold Fixtures and Construction
Buildings  improvements equipment in progress Total
BF  HEMEEE RERGEHE TERIRE g
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $°000
T T T T Fr
Cost: B :
At 1 July 2020 R-E-ZF+tA—H 2,384,052 563,259 460,545 17,474 3,425,330
Additions wE - 6,499 22,920 72,238 101,657
Transfers R - 54,985 2,761 (57,746) -
Disposals B - (47) (8,365) - (8,412)
At 30 June 2021 and R=—B-—-FXA=1+H
at 1 July 2021 R=®=-%tA-AH 2,384,052 624,696 477,361 31,966 3,518,575
Additions 2E - 34,579 32,989 114,227 181,795
Transfers L3 - 76,238 2,257 (78,495) -
Disposals BE - (212) (4,419) - (4,631)
At 30 June 2022 R-ZBZ-FXA=1H 2,384,052 735,301 508,688 67,698 3,695,739
Accumulated REHAE
depreciation:
At 1 July 2020 R-Z-ZF+tA—H 939,609 370,211 365,257 - 1,675,077
Charge for the year rEEHE 47,675 52,850 31,756 - 132,281
Written back on REEREE
disposals - (46) (8,365) - (8,411)
At 30 June 2021 and R=—ZE-—-FXA=1+H
at 1 July 2021 E-2--%tA-H 987,284 423,015 388,648 - 1,798,947
Charge for the year REEHE 53,710 61,883 32,408 - 148,001
Written back on REERE
disposals - (212) (4,347) - (4,559)
At 30 June 2022 W-ZE-—FXA=1H 1,040,994 484,686 416,709 - 1,942,389
Net book value: HREEE ¢
At 30 June 2022 RZZZZ&-A=+H 1,343,058 250,615 91,979 67,698 1,753,350
At 30 June 2021 RZZ=Z—§-A=+H 1,396,768 201,681 89,213 31,966 1,719,628
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3  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Cost:
At 1 July 2020
Additions
Transfers
Disposals

At 30 June 2021 and
at1July 2021

Additions
Transfers
Disposals

At 30 June 2022

Accumulated
depreciation:
At 1 July 2020
Charge for the year
Written back on
disposals

At 30 June 2021 and
at1July 2021

Charge for the year

Written back on
disposals

At 30 June 2022

Net book value:
At 30 June 2022

At 30 June 2021

A :
R=2-2FLA-H
58
#E
BE

R=$=—FXA=18
R=%=—%+tA-H

g

B

BE

R-B-Z£XA=tH

REHE -

R-Z-ZFH+A—-H
REEHE
REARD

R=F=-FAA=1H
R=%=-FtA-H

AEEHE

BEERE

R-B-ZHEXA=1H

BREFE :
RZZE==FA=1+AH

R-ZE-—%xA=+H

3

ME- - BMERRE(E

Leasehold Fixturesand ~ Construction in

Buildings  improvements equipment progress Total
BF HEWEEE EERGE TrRIRE e
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T T T T Fr
2,380,288 551,755 449,384 17,474 3,398,901
- 1,065 22,255 72,238 95,558

- 54,985 2,761 (57,746) -
- - (8,069) - (8,069)
2,380,288 607,805 466,331 31,966 3,486,390
- 33,072 31,631 114,227 178,930

- 76,238 2,257 (78,495) -
- - (4,396) - (4,396)
2,380,288 717,115 495,823 67,698 3,660,924
938,129 362,884 354,993 - 1,656,006
47,602 50,774 31,024 - 129,400
- - (8,069) - (8,069)

985,731 413,658 377,948 - 1,777,337
53,637 59,875 31,452 - 144,964

- - (4,324) - (4,324)
1,039,368 473,533 405,076 - 1,917,977
1,340,920 243,582 90,747 67,698 1,742,947
1,394,557 194,147 88,383 31,966 1,709,053
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4. Investments 4 #HE
Group R&@E University #X
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note $’°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
llogza Fx Tt T TIT
Investments in institutional entities P BHENRE (a)(F) 7,020 8,063 7,020 8,063
Investments in subsidiaries RETBABIHERE b)(z2) - -
7,020 8,063
(a) Investments in institutional entities () HHRBHENEE
Name of institutional entities Place of Particulars of ~ Held by Principal Activity
Incorporation Issued and Paid University
and Operation Up Capital
BB AT FEI B i 2Rt B BEEITRER HKRER B3 3
N
Joint Universities Computer Hong Kong 8 Shares 12.5% Information technology
Centre Limited BB 8 Ak services
AEBASEMPOERAT = B RHE AR
Joint University Programmes Hong Kong Limited by 12.5% Coordination and control
Admissions System BB guarantee of the Joint Admissions
AEHEHER ERBERAT System
FEREBRASHE BEDE
The University Sports Federation Hong Kong Limited by 9.1% Organising sports games
of Hong Kong, China Limited HE guarantee and competitions
HEEBREEEREERAF] ERER AT BPREEHMLE
(b)  Investmentsin subsidiaries () RWBAEMEE
The University has a 100% (2021: 100%) interest, without HABEEBHYERENBERERAT]
investment cost, in The EAUHK Schools Limited which 2100% (ZF=—14F : 100%) = CRBH
was incorporated in Hong Kong on 14 December 1998 as a ERA) o WARR—NAANF+TZA+N
company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company HEZBIMK LA —HERAERLQF
is to plan, establish and manage schools. HENRSEE  BUNEEER -

40 The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2021/2022



Notes to the Financial Statements | 13§ R & Kis:

THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B # & A2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 B & BHS - BT & BB ¥ BB (i)

4. Investments (Continued) 4 HE(E)
(b)  Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (2) RBARKIEE (&)

The University has a 100% (2021: 100%) interest, without HRANBBEEBYUERBHESEHYEE
investment cost, in The EdUHK School of Continuing BRAERAR ([HEHEZMR]) 2100% (=
and Professional Education Limited (“EdUHK SCPE”) T —F 1000 EBRORBREMRK) -
which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 28 June 2006 WRARRZZBZRFRATN\BEERE
as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the Ay A—EERERAR - HKZE
company is to set up, maintain and operate, in conjunction BREHAHFAEERLY  REFE
with the University for the promotion and advancement of B MFERE - FAEMREHRBEEZESEIN
professional, technical and continuing education, foster R—REBHRE - W (EEEBRT)R
and provide courses leading to awards as well as courses of HEBMEIIEEE S - HERE 2R
general interest, and where appropriate, provide learning BE-ZEZRFLA-HR BEEETHK
opportunities in or outside Hong Kong. The EdUHK SCPE has BTOREEEHE 2PN EENES -

assumed the responsibilities and mission of the Division of
Continuing Professional Education of the University since 1

July 2006.
The results of these subsidiaries are accounted for in the UL E B AR EESAREB GRS B
Group’s consolidated financial statements. BI|KRA -
5 Financial assets measured at amortised cost 5 REFERAFENEMEE
Group and University &M R K
2022 2021
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Financial assets measured at amortised cost  IZE R AT E R FBAIERBHEED
and classified as non-current assets TREE
- Debt securities -fEFH 9,137 9,145
6 Bank deposits with original maturity over three 6 FEHABB=MEAZEHPENX
months
Group #£E University #X
2022 2021 2022 2021
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr T Fr T
Bank deposits with original JREIHA BB 3 18 A &Y
maturity over 3 months TEHIER
Current portion mENEB
- Unpledged - RYEEHR 935,867 1,383,871 935,184 1,383,188
- Pledged - BRI 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
941,867 1,389,871 941,184 1,389,188
The pledged bank deposits of $6,000,000 (2021: $6,000,000) TF HA1F 346,000,000 7T ( —ZF = —4F : 6,000,000 7T)
were used as securities for the Group’s and the University’s bank RBEREERBARBE_T_—FR-2F__
overdraft facilities which have not been utilised for the years ended FRA=ZTHEMBFERASBORITEXRE
30 June 2021 and 2022. A o
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7  Contract assets and contract liabilities 7 AHEEMEHERE
Group £&@E University #X
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Wizt T T T T
Contract assets BHEE (a)(F) 28,842 27,357 28,842 27,357
Contract liabilities BHEE (b)jz) 81,259 70,018 79,843 68,264

(@)  The contract assets represented the Group’s right to the
consideration relating to contracts provision for courses and
services which was conditional on achieving certain milestones.

(b)  The contract liabilities represented amounts relating to tuition and
hostels fees received in advance.

(c)  Movement in contract liabilities

(F) anEERAEBRURENBEEBA 0K
AR (BRI A T IR 5 AT ER
WEFE AR -

(2) anBBEAREERAAAHSEREENHEY

A -

(R) aHEEED

Group Z£E University X

Balance at 1 July 2020

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
recognising income during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the period

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
receipts in advance

Balance at 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
recognising income during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the period

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
receipts in advance

Balance at 30 June 2022

$’000 $000
Fi Fi
R-B-EFLtA—BNERE 62,788 60,700
HAFTANEEERD
ERERM
(53,138) (51,050)
RS A DB E M
60,368 58,614
R=-B=—FxXA=1+HK
—E--FtA-ANEE 70,018 68,264
HAFENA DA EERD
BRI
(60,604) (58,850)
FEUWRIBE A H B R
71,845 70,429
R-B-—EXA=+BENERE 81,259 79,843
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8 Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments 8 JEUWERF - RERTEMTHIE
Group &M@ University #X
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note $°000 §’000 $°000 §’000
Mt Fr FIT Fr FiT
Accounts receivable, net of FEURBRFR « IR RARE
loss allowance SRR 53,657 70,966 53,102 70,951
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BB A R EUA (a)(F) - - 4 7
Balances held at the investment IR B IR B F KRR
managers b)) 23,712 7,932 23,712 7,932
Security deposits RERS 4,070 7,110 4,054 7,094
81,439 86,008 80,872 85,984
Prepayments SEINE e 8,137 8,878 8,112 8,829

89,576 94,886 88,984 94,813

The amount of security deposits and prepayments expected to At —F U KBS ERASEANREREN
be recovered or recognised as expense after more than one year T RIEH) € B8 /5,698,000t (=T = — 4
is $5,698,000 (2021: $4,378,000). All of other accounts receivable, 4,378,0007T) « M EW AR - Z& MIERHIA
deposits and prepayments are expected to be recovered or T —F 2 ARO K ER AL

recognised as expenses within one year.

(a)  Amounts due from subsidiaries (R) BUHERFMEIE
The amounts are unsecured and recoverable within 30 days. U TH FE W R A AR AR AN B A 30 H AME R -
If balance is overdue, interest will be charged at monthly WMEBHRER  ZRIASRRBITEARE
savings account interest rate quoted by bank. At the end FRFEAERE - REE BT Ra AR
of the reporting period, none of the amounts due from B BB A RIE) RRIA

subsidiaries was overdue.

(b)  Balances held at the investment managers (2) RIREEENTFHHREE
The balances represent cash held temporarily at the external IHRBREERERRNTZE BT
investment managers for investment decision in-between. RINER B IR R S o

EBHKBEARE 20212022 BHEHE 43



Notes to the Financial Statements | 817§ 3R & M5t

THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B B A2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 B &5 BHS - BT & BB ¥ B8 (i)

9  Financial assets measured at fair value through profit 9 N LBEINEZHEHEE
or loss

Group and University R&E@RHK

2022 2021
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Fixed income securities & E U A B 335,751 305,908
Equities e
- Listed in Hong Kong -EES LT 36,039 18,107
- Listed outside Hong Kong -TEBBLASN £ 168,514 142,443
204,553 160,550
Investment in unlisted unit trust JEEMEM{EERE 1,149 1,435
541,453 467,893
Note: PiET
As at 30 June 2022, the University invested in two investment RZZEZZFRA=Z1H BAFEMERKE
portfolios managed by investment managers. The University EMERNREES - BAE 2 REERAELE
has delegated the authority of making investment decision, EHRRENREREERANERZIREEEG R
within the investment mandate stipulated by the University, HIREARE - REEANFASBEEREEL
to the investment managers to manage the discretionary M FIRF -
investment portfolios created for the University. The
breakdown of the investment portfolios are included in the
list above.
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through BAABEAABRNERMEENRABERZS
profit or loss are recorded in interest and net investment EREWERTREAFEBRREF (BR) K
(loss)/income in the statement of comprehensive income = (& 23) ©
(Note 23).
As at 30 June 2022, there were cash balances held in the two RIZZEZZFXA=1H  HAERERELAE
investment portfolios by the University for investment PR ARIRENR ST - FIBERIT(Z) -
decision in-between and its details are disclosed in Note
8(b).
Details of investment in unlisted unit trust are disclosed in JE B ERRENFBEAE2HM T -
Note 31.
10 Cash and cash equivalents 10 REREEEEY
Group A&&E University # X
2022 2021 2022 2021
$’000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Tt T Tt
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEB RIS 204,355 206,508 193,235 194,767
Short-term bank deposits RN 591,597 215,048 576,035 199,441

795,952 421,556 769,270 394,208
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11 Accounts payable and accruals 11 EMERFAREFKIE
Group R&HE University #X
2022 2021 2022 2021
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T Tt Fx Tt
Accounts payable FEATER IR 97,526 102,270 82,849 87,213
Accruals FEE B 77,133 55,315 76,833 55,247
Other deposits Hiviz g 2,878 2,808 2,878 2,808
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTFT B A B K IA = = 1,007 950
177,537 160,393 163,567 146,218
Receipts in advance TEUERIA 5,079 4,082 5,068 4,071

182,616 164,475 168,635 150,289

The Group and the University settle the accounts payable according to AEBERBRSBRBERMNRERIAE - SNEH
payment due date. For remaining contractual maturities of accounts T - BNERFOFSBRENIE - F2MHME21
payable, please refer to Note 2.1(c). (R) -

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and BB ATNFBEAEERNEE  WIKREX
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of accounts payable and X -BE_Z-—FR-F-_FRA=1H
accruals approximated their fair values as at 30 June 2021 and 2022. LE B B B S R AN BR R S B ST FIE R AR E 2 B8

HHEAAEEEE -

12 Provision for employee benefits 12 EERFIEE

Group FR&H University #X
2022 2021 2022 2021
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F Tt F Tt

Staff costs (== 1p%N
Unutilised annual leave and others RETER R R HoAt 92,274 94,176 92,274 94,176
Gratuities wimi < 51,363 47,130 51,363 47,130
Long service payment REARTGS & 379 182 178 17
144,016 141488 143,815 141323

Payable FERTRR

Within 1 year —FN 125,399 123,584 125,198 123,419
After 1 year —F1& 18,617 17,904 18,617 17,904

144,016 141,488 143,815 141,323
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13. Deferred income 13 IEEYAN
Group &M@ University #X

2022 2021 2022 2021
Note $°000 §°000 $°000 §’000
et Fx Fit Frx Tt

Balance at 1 July 2021/2020 R-B-_—F /—FT_FFE
+tB—HWEE 444,650 395,718 443,715 395,392

Subventions, grants and donations Bl RHE S - B
received/receivable PIEiE N 1,385,433  1367,795 1,336,697 1,315,074
Recognised during the year REEZE AR (1,212,007) (1,217,988) (1,165,573) (1,171,741)
Transfer to deferred capital funds BREZRETEAES 14 (181,478) (100,875)  (178,728) (95,010)

Balance at 30 June 2022/2021 R-B-_—F /—F_—F
AB=t+HNER 436,598 444 650 436,111 4437715

Group =58

University #x

2022 2021 2022 2021
Note $°000 §°000 $°000 §°000
biaE Fr T Fr T
Balance representing; B
University 2N
Earmarked Grants R
-Research -ff3E 31,541 35,622 31,541 35,622
- Immersion R 15,252 13,690 15,252 13,690
-Home Financing Scheme -EFTE B E 82,803 82,803 82,803 82,803
- Housing-related benefits -EEMENEIZERE
other than Home BRER Sz
Financing Scheme 52,276 48,267 52,276 48,267
_Others Ei 73,862 62,984 73,862 62,984
Capital Grants and HERG RS - g -
Alterations, Additions, Repairs and HEE RoRE TR
Improvements Block Allocation [iRES] 35,803 63,267 35,803 63,267
Donations with designated BIRERZZBR
purposes 122,110 115,212 122,110 115,212
Grants from government BT B Bt ik R
and other agencies (a) (FF) 22,464 21,870 22,464 21,870
436,111 443715 436,111 443,715
Subsidiary o= NG
Earmarked Grants R
- Others -Hft 487 935 - -
436,598 444 650 436,111 443715
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13. Deferred income (Continued) 13 EEWN(EE)
(a)  Balance of grants from government and other agencies includes () B REABIEEREETHIRE
the unspent balances of the following funding:
() The Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary (=) BELB2EXREE
Students (“the SSE”)
The Education Bureau (“EDB”) of HKSAR Government EEFITHEHER(HERDR=Z
has started the SSE since 2014/15 to subsidise financially —m/—RFERNE FRETEE
needy students participating in exchange programmes. The 2l (Tzzat8l)) - NEMARBERE 2 24
University has duly complied with the terms and conditions SRS o A B LA R IERR
for the use of funding under the SSE as set out in the HSRIE R A AR R A A o 2T B R ME R
Operating Guide. The funding received and the expenditure AR BRI BEE T

of the SSE and the unspent balance are disclosed as follows:

Group and University F&EBERHK

2022 2021
$°000 $°000
Frx Tt
Balance at 1 July 2021/2020 R-B=—F —Z-ZFtA—ANEE 5,652 5,788
Income A
Grants refunded RBHES (3,663) -
Interest/investment income T8 R A Rk s - :
(3,663) -
Expenditure s
Programme costs BB | 188 | | 136
188 136
Balance at 30 June 2022/2021 R-B-—F —ZB-—FXA=1HNEE 1,801 5,652
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13. Deferred income (Continued) 13

AL ONE:-J)

(a)  Balance of grants from government and other agencies includes () BRREMEEEREETIIRE : (&)

the unspent balances of the following funding: (Continued)

(i) The Scheme for Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to Belt

and Road Regions for Post-secondary Students (“the Means-
tested SSEBR”) (previously known as Scheme for Subsidy
on Exchange to Belt and Road Regions for Post-secondary
Students (“the SSEBR”))

In 2015/16, the EDB has started the SSEBR, subsequently
named as the Means-tested SSEBR in 2019/20, to subsidise
financially needy students participating in exchange
activities held in the Belt and Road Region. The University
has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use
of funding under SSEBR as set out in the Operating Guide.
The funding received and the expenditure of the SSEBR and

(Z) FLBAREI—H— B EIRABE
—%

ESEBFE (AR [ ELE2EmE
—B& ] @ AR E ByET &)

RZZT—5/ —~FE HERELS—
B PBERE [ B RN E BT
g TR/ ZEFEEAELE
AR —F—RBIMHERIRAREEE
BhEtEI([—F— 58 ]) - LEBMAKE
gk 245 [—F 5] ELINZRE
) o HARNER—F KT EIRERER R

RIE R FRF R R o — & — B 5 BIR AR R
WA R S B ANBREE R AR IR EE A0 T

the unspent balance are disclosed as follows:

Group and University A&EERHK

2022 2021
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Balance at 1 July 2021/2020 N-B——F /—S-S5+tA—BN&EF 646 585
Income A
Grants (refunded)/received GREB) Blshs (228) 103
Interest/investment income B RIS & R - _
(228) 103
Expenditure X
Programme costs EBEMA | 36| | 42 |
36 42
Balance at 30 June 2022/2021 R-B-—F —FE--—EXA=+HNEE 382 646

48 The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2021/2022



Notes to the Financial Statements | 13§ R & Kis:
THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG BB B A2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 B & BHS - BT & BB ¥ BB (i)

13. Deferred income (Continued) 13 IREWN(E)
(a)  Balance of grants from government and other agencies includes () BREEMEEEREETIIRE : (&)
the unspent balances of the following funding: (Continued)
(i) The Non-means-tested Mainland Experience Scheme for (Z) EAEREEE F2ERNMERTE
Post-secondary Students (the “Non-means-tested MES”)
The EDB has started the Non-means-tested MES in 2019/20 HERRZZE—N/ZZEFEHLEAS
to encourage more post-secondary students in Hong Kong HEEEFBAAMERFTE(TEL2ER
to pursue exchange activities in the Mainland. The University EEEREtE D) - UREESAME 24
has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use B A INNEE) c HANERE R824
of funding under the Non-means-tested MES as set out in the A3 B8 B 5t B2 (F 48 B SRIE(E A IR &%
Operating Guide. The funding received and the expenditure AR - B 24 R B8 ERET SR ARRUA
of the Non-means-tested MES and the unspent balance are R AR AR T

disclosed as follows:

Group and University R&EBRZH K

2022 2021
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Balance at 1 July 2021/2020 R-B=—F —Z-ZFtA—HWER 620 628
Income A
Grants refunded REWHDS (398) -
Interest/investment income B RIZE S - :
(398) -
Expenditure X i
Programme costs hENE A [ 34 | | 8 |
34 8
Balance at 30 June 2022/2021 R-B-—F —B-—FXA=+AWNER 188 620
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13. Deferred income (Continued) 13 B

LONE )]

(a)  Balance of grants from government and other agencies includes () BRREMEEEREETIIRE : (&)

the unspent balances of the following funding: (Continued)

(iv)  The Scheme for Non-means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to ()
Belt and Road Regions for Post-secondary Students (“the
Non-means-tested SSEBR”)

The EDB has started the Non-means-tested SSEBR in 2019/20
to encourage more post-secondary students in Hong Kong
to pursue exchange activities in Belt and Road Regions. The
University has duly complied with the terms and conditions
for the use of funding under the Non-means-tested SSEBR

as set out in the Operating Guide. The funding received and
the expenditure of the Non-means-tested SSEBR and the
unspent balance are disclosed as follows:

RABEEHELBARE [ —F K] R

HERKR-ZE—N/_—ZEFEHRHEAS
FEEHELBAEFA—H K WEIRE
B8 (R ARBE—H—KaE1) - A
SREZAME LSER [ —F 8] it
B2MZREE - BABRPABES—
B —BRET B (4 F R SRR AR R AR
Al - R ABEL— & BT EIMMABKRA
RSz MERREFF AR EE LN T

Balance at 1 July 2021/2020 RoB-—F /—EB-SE+A—-ANES
Income WA
Grants refunded RERDS
Interest/investment income B RIEE F e
Expenditure X
Programme costs EENE
Balance at 30 June 2022/2021 R-B-——F —B-_—FXA=1+HWNEE
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2022 2021
$°000 $°000

Fr T

328 338

(22) =

(22) =

[ 10| [ 10|
10 10

296 328
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14. Deferred capital funds 14 EEEXAESE

Leasehold Fixtures and Construction

Buildings improvements  equipment in progress Total
HEME HE
2F =5 B FRIR i
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Mzt Fr Fi T Fr Fr
Balance at 1 July 2020 R-ZE-ZEFLtA—HWER 1,444,443 189,842 92,727 17,474 1,744,486
Transfer from deferred income ~ EEBIRTLEHKA 13 - 6,342 22,295 72,238 100,875
Transfers B - 54,985 2,761 (57,746) -
Release to statement of BAZERER
comprehensive income (47,675) (52,237) (30,137) - (130,049)
Balance at 30 June2021and R=-T=-—FXA=1+HRK
at1July 2021 —E--FtA-HWERE 1,396,768 198,932 87,646 31,966 1,715,312
Transfer from deferred income ~ EEIETEHA 13 - 34,565 32,686 114,227 181,478
Transfers R - 76,238 2,257 (78,495) -
Release to statement of BAZERER
comprehensive income (53,710) (61,301) (31,393) - (146,404)
Balance at 30 June 2022 RIB--EXA=1THWNER 1,343,058 248,434 91,196 67,698 1,750,386

University # X

Leasehold Fixtures and Construction

Buildings improvements  equipment in progress Total
HEmE KE
BF 5 HiE FETR k]
Note $°000 $000 $°000 $°000 $’°000
HeE Fr FT Fr Fr Fr
Balance at 1 July 2020 R-ZZE-_ZF+A—HNER 1,442,159 186,228 92,115 17,474 1,737,976
Transfer from deferred income ~ HEBIEEKA 13 - 1,065 21,707 72,238 95,010
Transfers B - 54,985 2,761 (57,746) -
Release to statement BAZEREE
of comprehensive income (47,602) (50,356) (29,772) - (127,730)
Balance at 30 June2021and R=T=—FXA=+HRK
at 1 July 2021 “EC-St+tA-HWEE 1,394,557 191,922 86,811 31,966 1,705,256
Transfer from deferred income ~ HEBIEEKA 13 - 33,072 31,429 114227 178,728
Transfers B - 76,238 2,257 (78,495) -
Release to statement BAZEWREE
of comprehensive income (53,637) (59,465) (30,673) - (143,775)
Balance at 30 June 2022 REB--HFXA=THNER 1,340,920 241,767 89,824 67,698 1,740,209
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 B #BF5N - AT & BB M 881 )

15. UGC funds 15 FEGEHMES
Group and University Z&EERH K
General and
development Matching
reserve fund grant funds Total
—MR MR [REaEE ik
HEES e B
Note $°000 $°000 $’°000
Hzt T T Fr
(Note a) (Note b)
(B EERR) (MsE2)
Balance at 1 July 2020 R-B-_ZEFtA—HWERE 565,962 143,123 709,085
Transfer from/(to) statement of & H, /(Z) 2EHKER
comprehensive income 2,711 (2,107) 604
Inter-fund transfer He MR 16 18,306 - 18,306
Balance at 30 June 2021 and R-B-—FAxA=1H
at1July 2021 R-E-—F+tHA—HWER 586,979 141,016 727,995
Transfer to statement of EEE2EREE
comprehensive income (23,231) (7,992) (31,223)
Inter-fund transfer EoMER 16 (26,392) - (26,392)
Balance at 30 June 2022 R-B-_—EXA=1THNWERE 537,356 133,024 670,380

(a) General and development reserve fund (“GDRF”) represents (R) —mwrkBRFHEES ((REES D EBHKX
the unspent UGC funds (i.e. the recurrent grants other than BARAHEGER(AEELET - B8
earmarked grants for specified purpose) of the University. FBHEHRAENETER - BEESNE
The balance of GDRF at the end of the funding period (usually FHCBERB=F) MK AR (T4
a triennium) that can be carried over to the next funding BET—{AERE) K5 TBBEZENKL
period is limited to a maximum of 20% of the approved EIE RS (TR IR USRS IR E B
recurrent grants for the University other than the earmarked BY20% o A0SR 7% 8 2 & 7O B SR E R IS &Y
grants for specific purposes for that funding period. Should FERREBT RRT LR - BHMESEAR
the balance of GDRF at the end of the funding period exceed BTHES - BR=ZFHR-Z-_FX
the ceiling allowed, the excess amount is refundable to the A=+RHEM -

UGC. The current triennium ends on 30 June 2022.

(b)  Matching grant funds are funds granted by the HKSAR () RHHPeESREBRITHEBRMER
Government on a matching basis for qualified private BAROEERIASRBERBLERFIRE
donations raised or research grants/research contracts HOMBEFED S EEHEHNMERER -
from non-government/non-public sectors received by the NERBEEHNHABERNES - BEEEH
University. The matching grants can be used for supporting TARAREDHESKFHERREBEAY
activities within the ambit of UGC-recurrent grants. Details B - BEEH WA RN RES YT
of income or expenditure incurred for the Matching Grant STEI BB A K E 9 RIS
Scheme and the Research Matching Grant Scheme are 21(Z) (A -

shown in Note 21(b) and (c) respectively.
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16 HEES
Group and University ZEBRHA

16. Restricted funds

Endowment funds BA&AE % (Note a) (FHEF )

Unspent
balance
Shun Hing WingLung for
Cheung’s Education Bank research
Matching  Family and Student and
grant  Charity ~ Charity LadyyWu Li&Fung Exchange other
funds Funds Funds Scholarship  Schdlarships Scholarship ~ Sub-total — projects Total
EEHE KERTT RAME
etiine ®E REE PEAE g BEZR R HAt
2y #EES £y REF REE %83 Nt RBEH ok
Note  §000  §000  $000  $000  $000  $000  §000  $000  $’°000
izt T T T T T T T Fr T
(Note b)
(M&E2)
Balanceat1July2020 R=Z-ZTFtA-H
&R 21817 3179 5648 6163 4129 526 41,462 118,543 160,005
Transfer from/(to) BEE/(2)2E
statement of Wk
comprehensive income 29 (25) 76 61 8 149 - 149
Inter-fund transfer SRR 15 - = = - - - (18,306) (18,306)
Balance at30 June 2021 R=-TB=—FxA=+
and at 1 July 2021 AR=Z=—-FtA
—HN&ER 21,846 3,154 5,124 6,163 4190 534 41611 100,237 141,848
Transfer from/(to) BEE/(2)2E
statement of Wk
comprehensive income 136 (16) 21 (23) (21) 9) 88 - 88
Inter-fund transfer ESHER 15 - = - - - - - 26392 26,392
Balance at30 June 2022 R=B-=FxA=+
AR 21,982 3,138 5,745 6,140 4,169 525 41,699 126,629 168,328
(a)  Endowment funds represent grants and donations on which (F) BRESERRERBEENERREE
the University would, according to the wishes of the donors, WAL WERBESMEENKRA
keep the principal intact and only use income generated R IFIETE AR BTRRIBE -
from the fund to support activities of designated purposes.
(b)  Unspent balance for research and other projects represents () RBMARHAMIAR BREREERTE

MERMBELIRE RGN —REERM
BESNER - BETESEBESEPHE
& ZANESHEREZEAFE R EN
RAEANBEBBEAMBEEESEZEME
NGBS IA B PR SO B SRS AR -

the balances of general and development reserve fund
designated for different research and knowledge transfer
projects. Inter-fund transfer between restricted funds and
UGC funds represents the net balance of funds set aside for
specific research and knowledge transfer projects during the
year and expenditure incurred under these projects.

53

EBHEKNE 2021/2022 B5HHE



Notes to the Financial Statements | 817§ 3R & M5t
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 B &5 BHS - BT & BB ¥ B8 (i)

17. Other funds 17 HthE &
Group Z~5£ME
Other
operation  Donations and
reserves benefactions Total
Hib & ERE BR&IBE FEk ]
§’000 §’000 $°000
i v Fr
(Note a) (Note b)
(FF&ER) (FF3EZ)
Balance at 1 July 2020 R-B-_ZEFtA—HWERE 530,287 121,164 651,451
Transfer from statement of i E 2 mIRaER
comprehensive income 75,453 5,709 81,162
Balance at 30 June 2021 R-ZB-_—%FXA=1H
and at 1 July 2021 R-_EBE-—E+HA—AWEE 605,740 126,873 732,613
Transfer from/(to) statement of #ing (2)2EARER
comprehensive income 8,058 (7,057) 1,001
Balance at 30 June 2022 RSB -FXA=THNERE 613,798 119,816 733,614

University #X

Other
operation  Donations and
reserves benefactions Total
Hith & BRKRIEE e
§’000 §’000 $°000
T+t v Fr
(Note a) (Note b)
(F=ER) (2D
Balance at 1 July 2020 R-E-_EF+HA—HWEE 521,332 120,694 642,026
Transfer from statement of #HiEt g 2EKkaR
comprehensive income 73,295 5,709 79,004
Balance at 30 June 2021 R=-E=-—FXHA=1+H
and at 1 July 2021 R-B-—-StB—BW&ER 594,627 126,403 721,030
Transfer from/(to) statement of BEE (R)2EkER
comprehensive income 7,543 (7,057) 486
Balance at 30 June 2022 RSB ZFXA=THNESE 602,170 119,346 721,516
(a)  Other operation reserves are funds other than those () Hitha@RFEERTIIME(Z) ~ Mais &
described in Note (b) below, Notes 15 and 16. They are used Mt 16 ATt ASN E® - WETEIAERAK
to finance the Group’s activities in general. SEN—REDRMEES
(b)  Donations and benefactions represent the reserves of non- (2) BRERBHIETZRETBEE ZBRHE
refundable donations from the donors. & o
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18. Segment report for UGC-funded and Non-UGC-funded 18 HEEEHMRIENEEEHFEHW

operations SIEHE
Group A&EE
UGC-funded Non-UGC-funded activities Sub-total  Intersegment 2022
activities transaction  Net total
elimination
HAR -  PEEZ
EBEE FHEGEENED PNEE O RHHEH okl
Non-UGC-
Self- funded
financing research  Donation Other
activities activities activities activities
BRAE

ZEE  MEE®  BENEE  HtED
$000 $°000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $’000
T T T T T T T Fr

(Note b)
(fH3EZ)
Income WA
Government subventions RF8E 1,128113 64,885 - - 48814 1241812 - 1,241,812
Tuition, programmes and otherfees 2% - RIEMEMYE 283513 241,782 - 2,096 11,667 539,058 (1) 539,057
Donations and benefactions BREEY - - 3977 100,327 249 104,553 - 104,553
Auxiliary services 1 AR 7% 5,789 19,724 - 25 997 26,535 (658) 25,877
Interest and net investment FERIE RS
incomey/(loss) (&48) 8,225 (1,806) - (3,838)  (43387)  (40,806) - (40,806)
Otherincome Hen g A 17,560 9,650 3,956 250 2,526 33,942 (701) 33,241
1,443200 334,235 7933 98860 20,866 1,905,094 (1,360) 1,903,734
Expenditure Xt
Teaching, learning and research H2 - B kR
Teaching and research HERAE 861,447 130,114 9,185 90,355 65,643 1,156,744 (969) 1,155,775
Library Bl 51,866 9,992 7 511 177 62,618 9 62,609
Central computing facilities FRRBIRHE 94,088 16,932 109 . 268 111,397 - 111,397
Other academic services Hfth B RS 59,491 11,919 - . 2 71,412 (1) 71,411
Institutional support HEXE
Management and general ERE—MFR 96,378 14,839 165 526 671 112,579 (5) 112,574
Premises and related expenses R& RAARERX 255,135 41,778 857 4,502 4206 306,478 (369) 306,109
Student and general education B4 R —RHA R
services 55882 41222 - 10,106 6,790 114,000 (7) 113,993

1,474,287 266,796 10,388 106,000 77,7157 1,935,228 (1,360) 1,933,868

(Deficit)/surplus and total EHRAAEE (FB)/
comprehensive income BHR2ERZAE
for the year before transfers (31,087) 67,439 (2,455) (7,140)  (56,891)  (30,134) - (30,134)

EBHKBEARE 20212022 BHEHE Hh



Notes to the Financial Statements | B13§3R & HisE
THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B # B A £

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 B &5 BHS - BT & BB ¥ B8 (i)

18. Segment report for UGC-funded and Non-UGC-funded

operations (Continued)

DIEHE(F)

18 HEGEMRIEHEGENDFTHN

Group Z5HE

UGC-funded Non-UGC-funded activities Sub-total  Intersegment 2021
activities transaction  Net total
elimination
yEe AEMZ
EBES FHEGEEED NEE O RHHEH ko)
Non-UGC-
Self- funded
financing research  Donation Other
activities activities activities activities
EEEE
2EY  BENED  BEEY HMED
§000 §°000 $000 §000 $000 §000 $000 $°000
F FT F T T T T Fr
(Note b)
(M¥5E2)
Income WA
Government subventions T8 & 1,137,659 62,756 - - 48464 1248879 - 1,248,879
Tuition, programmes and other fees ~ S% « REMEMME 282157 230,505 - 1,819 11,402 525883 (580) 525,303
Donations and benefactions BHRRIEY = - 2,466 89,370 102 91,938 9) 91,929
Auxiliary services Pt 8 AR 75 3,597 14,306 - 8 972 18,883 (371) 18,512
Interest and netinvestmentincome M8 R EFM 19,126 3,694 - 9,521 45363 77,704 - 71,704
Other income HeA 14,290 7,618 3,694 729 2,522 28,853 (720) 28,133
1,456,829 318,879 6,160 101,447 108,825 1,992,140 (1,680) 1,990,460
Expenditure X
Teaching, learning and research HE - BT RAR
Teaching and research HERTHR 868,671 129,738 9278 81367 64189 1153243 (1,543) 1,151,700
Library BE 51,558 9,703 90 358 173 61,882 8) 61,874
Central computing facilities R BRI 87,095 15,448 129 247 102,919 102,919
Other academic services E B0l iR 57,301 11,955 - 3 69,259 - 69,259
Institutional support HEXE
Management and general EERRER 96,164 14,874 219 78 625 111,960 (14) 111,946
Premises and related expenses & R X 244713 40,817 920 3,715 6,687 296,852 (113) 296,739
Student and general education B4 R—BHE RSB
services 50,694 46,312 = 10,169 6,935 114,110 (2) 114,108
1,456,196 268,847 10,636 95,687 78,859 1,910,225 (1,680) 1,908,545
Surplus/(deficit) and total BENLEERS
comprehensive income (F8) RZEKEEE
for the year before transfers 633 50,032 (4,476) 5,760 29,966 81,915 - 81,915
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18 Segment report for UGC-funded and Non-UGC-funded

operations (Continued)

Income
Government subventions
Tuition, programmes and other fees
Donations and benefactions
Auxiliary services

Interest and net investment
income/(loss)
Other income

Expenditure

Teaching, learning and research
Teaching and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support
Management and general
Premises and related expenses

Student and general education
services

(Deficit)/surplus and total
comprehensive income
for the year before transfers

Notes to the Financial Statements | 13§ R & Kis:

DEBE(HF)

18 ZEGEMRIEHEGENDFTHN

UGC-funded Non-UGC-funded activities Sub-total  Intersegment 2022
activities transaction  Net total
elimination
HE" DEMZ
EVIEE) FEHEGEREE N RBHESE ko]
Non-UGC-
Self- funded
financing research  Donation Other
activities activities activities activities
HERE
ZEE  BEEE  EENEE  EMEE
$000 $°000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $’000
T Fr T Fr T T T Fr
(Note b)
(=)
WA
RF8E 1,128113 64,885 - - - 1,192,998 - 1,192,998
2%  REMEMEE 283513 241,780 - 2,096 1,321 528,710 (1) 528,709
1B R IR - - 3977 100,327 - 104,304 - 104,304
B AR 5,789 19,724 - 25 997 26,535 (298) 26,237
FEREE TS
(E18) 8225 (1,809) - (3,838)  (43,410)  (40,832) - (40,832)
Hp A 17,560 9,650 3,956 250 540 31,956 (48) 31,908
1,443200 334,230 7,933 98860  (40,552) 1,843,671 (347) 1,843,324
X
HE . B RAR
HERHE 861,447 130,108 9,185 90,355 7386 1,098,481 (316) 1,098,165
EEtr 51,866 9,992 72 511 177 62,618 9 62,609
R ERERSE 94,088 16,932 109 268 111,397 - 111,397
H 10 SRR 59,491 11,919 - 2 71,412 (1) 71,411
HEIE
ERR—RER 96,378 14,821 165 526 418 112,308 (5) 112,303
R& RAARERX 255135 41,778 857 4,502 1,832 304,104 (9) 304,095
BER—RHE KRB
55882 41222 - 10,106 6,790 114,000 (7) 113,993
1474287 266,772 10,388 106,000 16,873 1,874,320 (347) 1,873,973
EHRAAEE (FB)/
BEHRREENSEE
(31,087) 67,458 (2,455) (7,140)  (57,425)  (30,649) - (30,649)
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18 Segment report for UGC-funded and Non-UGC-funded
operations (Continued)

18 HEGEMRIEHEGENDFTHN
DIEHE(F)

University #X

UGC-funded Non-UGC-funded activities Sub-total  Intersegment 2021
activities transaction  Net total
elimination
yEe DIERZ
EBES FHEGEEED NEE O RHHEH ko)
Non-UGC-
Self- funded
financing research  Donation Other
activities activities activities activities
EEEE
2EY  BENED  BEEY HMED
$000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000 $°000
F FT F T T T T Fr
(Note b)
(PHE2)
Income WA
Government subventions BB & 1,137,659 62,756 - . - 1,200,415 - 1,200,415
Tuition, programmes and otherfees 2% - RIZAMEMKE 282157 230,502 - 1,819 487 514,965 (580) 514,385
Donations and benefactions BHRRIEY = - 2,466 89,370 - 91,836 (9) 91,827
Auxiliary services Pt 8 AR 75 3,597 14,306 - 8 972 18,883 (258) 18,625
Interest and netinvestmentincome M8 RIZEFM 19,126 3,684 - 9,521 45290 77,621 - 711,621
Otherincome HeA 14,290 7,618 3,694 729 564 26,895 (51) 26,844
1,456,829 318,866 6,160 101,447 47313 1,930,615 (898) 1,929,717
Expenditure X
Teaching, learning and research HE - BT RAR
Teaching and research HERTR 868,671 129,723 9278 81367 7,193 1,096,232 (874) 1,095,358
Library BEE 51,558 9,703 90 358 173 61,882 8) 61,874
Central computing facilities R BRI 87,095 15,448 129 247 102,919 102,919
Other academic services E B0l iR 57,301 11,955 - 3 69,259 - 69,259
Institutional support HEXE
Management and general EER-RER 96,164 14,868 219 78 423 111752 (14) 111,738
Premises and related expenses & KRR 244713 40,764 920 3,715 4592 294704 - 294,704
Student and general education B4 R—BHE RSB
services 50,694 46,312 = 10,169 6,935 114,110 (2) 114,108
1456196 268,773 10,636 95687 19,566 1,850,858 (898) 1,849,960
Surplus/(deficit) and total BENLEERS
comprehensive income (B8 RZEKEEE
for the year before transfers 633 50,093 (4,476) 5,760 27,747 79,757 - 79,757
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18 Segment report for UGC-funded and Non-UGC-funded 18 HEELEHRBRIER S LB FIHH

operations (Continued) NEBE(E)

Note BEE -

(a) Disclosures regarding segment report are included as a () BRYBEBRENEENRRESHES?
requirement of the SORP but the report is not designed A - WM RBEBHMISHRELRES
to fully comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8, St EENE] ZIREMRE

Operating segments.

(b) Inter-segment transactions mainly included internal () PBEMzX5EEBREANPHSLFER -
rental transactions.

(c) Costallocation practices for UGC-funded and non- (A) HECEMNERESEB TSR AD
UGC-funded activities 3
The University determines the basis of allocation - BRRBEHESREFREBENKAS
of costs between UGC-funded and non-UGC- Bigc|dTHEeEmEHEE
funded activities with reference to the UGC Notes B EhEE) Z MH R AR D EE -

on Procedures and the CAGs.

ii The classification of UGC-funded and non-UGC- = HESEPNEHASENIHN
funded activities is based on the funding source DERINEBNE S RIRBER -
of the activities. The direct costs of the UGC- FIEEERARZESEBEESIE
funded and non-UGC-funded activities are both HESEEHORAN  BHZSE
charged fully and directly to the respective EERERRURE -
activities.

i The CAGs define principles and approaches of

PR B8 B R LA AN D B RO IR A

cost allocation, including the definition of cost WML - BREERAD BRI AZHE
pools and cost drivers for UGC-funded and non- MESR  BHEGEDHEIFHNES
UGC funded activities on a full cost recovery & B EB) 2 MHR A D BL iR EEH
basis. ZHERIEHE -
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19. Government subventions 19 BIFF#K
Group £&@E University #X
2022 2021 2022 2021
$°000 $°000 $’°000 $°000
T T T T+t
Subventions from UGC BESRN
Block/Recurrent Grants S P A RN 924,142 963,242 924,142 963,242
Earmarked Grants B 62,936 44,843 62,936 44,843
Home Financing Scheme EFTEBIETE - 390 - 390
Matching Grant fesiHBh & 13 20 13 20
Research Matching Grant HRECE B 1,686 457 1,686 457
Earmarked for Pension Top-up HEEMABRARS 448 821 448 821
Earmarked Language FETE BT kA
Immersion Programmes 2,755 2,222 2,755 2,222
Research projects 7B E 21,698 19,149 21,698 19,149
Housing-related benefits other than FEMEBEIZEE
Home Financing Scheme BAEE 76 1,332 76 1,332
Knowledge Transfer HHER 2,337 2,822 2,337 2,822
Teaching and Learning related HEDEANIEZR
initiatives 171 1,190 171 1,190
Other Earmarked Grants Hh g E &R 33,752 16,440 33,752 16,440
Government rent and rates refund IR [BI307E & 2= 11,017 11,567 11,017 11,567
Capital Grants and Alterations, BB R - i - 4HE
Additions, Repairs and NhE T2 RERERRE
Improvements Block Allocation 106,796 93,439 106,796 93,439

1,104,891 1,113,091 1,104,891 1,113,091

Grants from government BURF#B RN
agencies 136,921 135,788 88,107 87,324

1,241,812 1,248,879 1,192,998 1,200,415
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20. Tuition, programmes and other fees 20 BE  FEMEMKE
Group &M University #X
2022 2021 2022 2021
$’000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr T+t Fr T+t
UGC-funded programmes HESEHRE
Tuition fees 25 273,260 271999 273,260 271,999
Programmes and other fees REREME 10,253 10,158 10,253 10,158
Non-UGC-funded FHESEPRE
programmes
Tuition fees 2% 249,380 239,057 239,034 228,142
Programmes and other fees B NlE 6,164 4,089 6,162 4,086

539,057 525,303 528,709 514,385

21. Donations and benefactions 21 EBFRREH

Group &£ University #X

2022 2021 2022 2021

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Fx Tt Fr Tt

Capital projects ER2IEH 3,009 2,756 2,760 2,654
Scholarships, prizes and bursaries H#E2e  RKeMPHEe 6,910 6,417 6,910 6,417
Donations for academic activities HWEMLEERBR 94,634 82,756 94,634 82,756

104,553 91,929 104,304 91,827

(a)  Duringthe year ended 30 June 2022, the Group and the (F) BEZ_Z-__FRA=THILFE £&
University received donations for projects of $78,226,000 RHARESEPESSREETESE
(2021: $66,915,000) from The Hong Kong Jockey Club B8 B M98 I8 B) £ 78,226,000 L (= F
Charities Trust which were recognised as donations and —— % :669150007T) * ZIBHE R
benefactions in the statement of comprehensive income EEMNEBZHR2ERRRANER R
according to related expenditure incurred. R IBE -

(b)  Matching Grant Scheme (2) EeH#BEtEl
The HKSAR Government launched the Eighth Matching Grant ERRHTRREAR _E—NFLA—
Scheme for the period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2022 for HE_Z__FXA=1THHHEEI0HEE
10 publicly-funded post-secondary institutions to match the BVE FHERBETE \G [REHEDS
donations secured by them. Donations paid to the University e AREERRETEEMENE
during the stated period were eligible for such matching oo AR ZEBBE WM BREFTEE
grants. RS EZ I B RS -

All matching grants and matched donations were used for PR B St Bh & M B ST RO IR BB A AE
supporting activities within the ambits of UGC recurrent HESRF IR FBEANEED
grants.
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21. Donations and benefactions (Continued) 21 B
(b)  Matching Grant Scheme (Continued) ()

Details of the related income or expenditure incurred for the
matching grants and matched donations are shown below.

RAREN (&
B8 (&)

ERCH BN RA S AR AR
STHEEBT

Group and University Z&@ R A

2022 2021
Matching Matched ~ Matching  Matched
grants  donations grants donations
B EEY EY  EEY
wmehe SOEEPN wehe SOEEEAN
Note $°000 $°000 §°000 §°000
=3 Fr Fr FIT FiT
Balance at 1 July 2021/2020 R-B=——F —F-FF
tA—-BMEE 139,844 116,114 141849 123351
Income WA
Donations/grants B e - . . =
Interest/investment income FE AR E F s 416 (3,653) 6,503 4,741
Miscellaneous income E A A - 1,676 - 1,424
416 (1,977) 6,503 6,165
Expenditure S i(—)
Teaching and research enhancement 358 #R K5 4,533 5,147 4549 7,361
Internationalisation and BT BIFRAE f2
student exchange activities SERRED 172 15 113 -
Scholarships and prizes REG MRS 2,338 1,449 998 1,641
Bursaries BB - 251 - 239
Student development BAEER 437 81 845 191
Others HAh 736 3,822 1,974 3,594
8,216 10,765 8479 13,026
Transfer to endowment funds under ~BEEEEEAZBAES
restricted funds (136) (362) (29) (376)
Balance at 30 June 2022/2021 R-B-_—F —B-_—F
ANA=THWNERE ii(=) 131,908 103,010 139,844 116,114

All expenditures were incurred on degree and above
level of studies.

Unspent balance of $131,908,000 (2021: $139,844,000)
isincluded in matching grant funds under UGC

funds and unspent balance of $103,010,000

(2021: $116,114,000) is included in donations and
benefactions under other funds, endowment funds
under restricted funds and donations with designated
purposes under deferred income.
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21. Donations and benefactions (Continued) 21 HEEEER (&)
(A) HRELHSEE
BEEFNTRERIR =2 —NAFENA—

(c)  Research Matching Grant Scheme

The HKSAR Government launched the Research Matching
Grant Scheme for the period from 1 August 2019 to 31 July BE-ZZ-_—_F+A=+—AHHE%E21H
2022 for 21 local degree-awarding institutions to match the 23 B2 AF B R B M HE 1T T 9T e 2 4 B
donations and research grants/research contracts secured T8 UEHERRRBTTESMSHNE
by them. m&ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁj}i/ﬁﬁﬁ/\?’] o

For the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2022, the related RBE_ZE-_—FR_ZTF-__FXA=+
income or expenditure incurred for the matching grants and HIFFE  MREEHEDS LR mbE
matched donations/research grants/research contracts are SRRANERSBROEERA RS
shown below: HEFBNT

Group and University Z&EERHK

UGC-funded operations Self-financing operations

HESEYPNEE IHESEYPNEE
Matched Matched
donations/ donations/

Research research grants/

Research research grants/

matching research matching research
grants contracts grants contracts
i) EJIRE)
CESE/ COE P
MEicy  AEEBE WEREY  ARmpeS
Gk HREL e HREL
$°000 $°000 $000 $°000
FiT FT FT T
Balance at 1 July 2020 R-ZE_ZEF+tA—H
W& 1,062 1,032 212 12
Income N
Donations/grants received B mEE 3,647 8,321 1,081 590
Interest/investment income BRI E FW S 79 - - -
3,726 8,321 1,081 590
Expenditure > i
Research projects fscIEE 355 662 279 569
Research equipment okt - 25 - -
355 687 279 569
Balance at 30 June 2021 R-B-_—FXA=+H
and at 1 July 2021 E—ZE-_—%+tH—H
T 4,433 8,666 1,014 93
Income KA
Donations/grants received B B & 9,617 4,785 3,518 3,414
Interest/investment income BRI E F S 1 - - -
9,618 4,785 3,518 3,414
Expenditure =
Research projects 7eIE A 990 2,881 736 333
Research equipment IR - - 37 135
990 2,881 773 468
Balance at 30 June 2022 R-ZB-Z—FXA=1H
MiE1F 13,061 10,570 3,759 3,039
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22. Auxiliary services 22 MBRRTE
Group A&E University X
2022 2021 2022 2021
$°000 §°000 $°000 §’000
Fx T Fx Tt
Student hostels BaEE 19,375 14,006 19,375 14,006
Rental income LU A 1,881 - 2,241 113
Rental contribution from staff EEMSH 3,445 3,748 3,445 3,748
Others EAh 1,176 758 1,176 758

25,877 18,512 26,237 18,625

23. Interest and net investment (loss)/income 23 FERFEF(EHE) WE
Group H&&E University #X
2022 2021 2022 2021
$°000 $°000 $7000 $°000
Fr F Fr Fr
Net (loss)/gain from financial assets K BRARBET ABEH

measured at fair value through CREENT (BB) e
profit or loss (48,901) 63,295 (48,901) 63,295
Interest income FEUA 7,707 14,211 7,681 14,128
Foreign exchange gain B 5 e 388 198 388 198

(40,806) 77,704  (40,832) 77,621
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24. Expenditure 24 ZH
Group &~&E University #X
Employee  Operating Depreciation 2022 Total Employee Operating Depreciation 2022 Total
benefits  expenses benefits  expenses
expenses expenses
EE  2ERX weE fam BE  2ERX e s
b B

$000 $°000 $°000 $’°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $’°000
T T T T T T T T

(Note 25) (Note 25)
(BifzE25) (BiF#E25)
Teaching, learning and HE - BHRWMR
research
Teaching and research HERHAR 990,951 153,569 11,255 1,155,775 940,814 149,133 8,218 1,098,165
Library B E£E 36,426 25,350 833 62,609 36,426 25,350 833 62,609
Central computing facilities R EBIKERHE 50,507 47563 13327 111,397 50,507 47,563 13327 111,397
Other academic services Hfth ST AR A 61,890 9,307 214 71,411 61,890 9,307 214 71,411
1,139,774 235,789 25,629 1,401,192 1,089,637 231,353 22,592 1,343,582
Institutional support HEXE (Note 24(a)) (Note 24(a))
(BzE24(F)) (M)
Management and general EER—REE 94,583 17,943 48 112,574 94,583 17672 48 112,303
Premises and related el
expenses 51922 132239 121,948 306,109 51922 130,225 121,948 304,095
Student and general BER—BHE
education services MR 52,521 61,096 376 113,993 52,521 61,096 376 113,993
199,026 211278 122372 532,676 199,026 208993 122372 530,391
Total expenditure 2022 “ECoCERWEE 1338800 447,067 148001 1,933,868 12880663 440,346 144964 1,873,973
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24. Expenditure (Continued) 24 W (4)
Group &~&E University X

Employee  Operating Depreciation 2021 Total

Employee Operating Depreciation 2021 Total

benefits  expenses benefits  expenses
expenses expenses
EE HEMX e wE EE HEMX neE ko)
BRIz vl
§°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 §°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T Fr T T T Fr
(Note 25) (Note 25)
(P 25) (BifzE25)
Teaching, learning and HE - BiRWMR
research
Teaching and research HERIHAR 1,011,113 128,609 11978 1,151,700 961359 124,902 9,097 1,095,358
Library BE£E 37,349 23,488 1,037 61,374 37,349 23,488 1,037 61,374
Central computing facilities R EBIERHE 54,402 36,638 11,879 102,919 54,402 36,638 11,879 102,919
Other academic services Hfth ST AR A 62,394 6,689 176 69,259 62,394 6,689 176 69,259
1,165,258 195,424 25070 1,385,752 1115504 191,717 22,189 1,329,410
Institutional support HEZE (Note 24(a)) (Note 24(a))
(GERAGD) (HizE24 ()
Management and general EER—RER 94,798 17,070 78 111,946 94,798 16,862 78 111,738
Premises and related & KA
expenses 52,030 138178 106,531 296,739 52,030 136,143 106,531 294,704
Student and general BER—BHE
education services MR 52,344 61,162 602 114,108 52,344 61,162 602 114,108
199,172 216,410 107,211 522,793 199,172 214,167 107,211 520,550
Total expenditure 2021 TEC-FRHAE 1364430 411,834 132,281 1,908,545 1,314,676 405,884 129,400 1,849,960
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24. Expenditure (Continued)

(@)  Analysis of operating expenses - Institutional support

Notes to the Financial Statements | 13§ R & Kis:

24 ZH(#E)
() BERION - HEZE

Group F=5E

University #X

Management and general
Office expenses
Audit, professional and legal fees
General insurance
Minor equipment and system
implementation

Premises and related expenses

Utilities

Repair and maintenance and
minor works

Premises rental

Government rent and rates

Cleaning services

Security services

Office expenses

Telecommunications

Minor equipment and system
implementation

Property insurance

Notional rental for staff quarters

Student and general education
services

Student hostels expenses
Health care centre

Scholarship, bursaries and prizes to

students
Extra-curricular activities
Office expenses
Others

Total

EER-REHE

WMAERX

T8 EXERER

—fRiRER
NEURERZREN

REREEEA

NEEEiid

e RERNETRE

BFHEE

i M
RRIRT

R 2 AR 7%
WMAERX
EMEM
NV BN ZRE

YES S
BTREENEEES

BLAR—RBEERH

BAEEXH
BEPL

BES PR
RINEED
YNNG

Hit

M

2022 2021 2022 2021
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
12,677 11,097 12,575 11,063
2,198 3,032 2,121 2,955
2,124 2,189 2,032 2,092
944 752 944 752
17,943 17,070 17,672 16,862
21,222 19,560 20,558 18,952
47,678 58355 47,226 57,897
1,526 557 1,526 557
11,722 12,309 11,127 11,675
16,558 12,595 16,388 12,388
21,170 18,947 21,091 18,870
7,644 9,481 7,644 9,481
1,178 918 1,124 867
1,547 3,360 1,547 3,360
1,926 2,010 1,926 2,010
68 86 68 86
132,239 138,178 130,225 136,143
17,484 19,093 17,484 19,093
3,409 3,354 3,409 3,354
30,403 30,979 30,403 30,979
1,090 777 1,090 777
7,505 5,740 7,505 5,740
1,205 1,219 1,205 1,219
61,096 61,162 61,096 61,162
211,278 216,410 208,993 214,167
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25. Employee benefits expenses

25 EEEFIFX
Group #£H

University X

Wages and salaries
Unutilised annual leave and others
Gratuities
Contributions to MPF scheme
Contributions to superannuation scheme
Provision for/(reversal of) long

service payment
Housing benefits
Other staff related benefits

(@)  Higher paid staff

TERFM
AXRERREM
KRS
eRRE AT BIRHAK
DIREFTEIRHK
RERBERE(ED)

FEET
HitfE 8RR R

Total annual equivalent emoluments irrespective of the
funding sources for the higher paid staff are analysed as

follows:

2022 2021 2022 2021
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fi Fi F5 Fi
1,127,838 1148723 1,078,729 1,099,970
9,221 8,000 9,221 8,000
48,477 49595 48,477 49,595
23,769 23216 22,870 22,380
53,757 59,18 53,757 59,128
194 (290) 174 (327)
37,035 38637 37,035 38,637
38,509 37421 38,400 37,293
1,338,800 1364430 1,288,663 1314676

(%) B#%ES

=SHEENFHFEELAB(TEEESHR

W) AT ¢

Group and University &A&EE K HK

Basic salaries, housing allowances, gratuity/

contribution to retirement plans,

other allowances and benefits in kind (Note)

E¥ - BEER - AR RKE

STEIEHER - EERE R EYHes

CEE)
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25. Employee benefits expenses (Continued)

(@)  Higher paid staff (Continued)

The above emoluments fell within the following bands:

Notes to the Financial Statements | 13§ R & Kis:

25 EERFIMZ(E)

2¥EE (&)

LB e BRI DT

Number of staff EE&H

2022 2021

Emoluments bands 485 :
$1,800,001 - $1,950,000 1,800,001 7t - 1,950,000 7T 9 14
$1,950,001 - $2,100,000 1,950,001 7 - 2,100,000 7T 9 13
$2,100,001 - $2,250,000 2,100,001 7T - 2,250,000 7T 10 6
$2,250,001 - $2,400,000 2,250,001 7T - 2,400,000 7© 1 3
$2,400,001 - $2,550,000 2,400,001 7T - 2,550,000 7T 2 3
$2,550,001 - $2,700,000 2,550,001 7T - 2,700,000 7T 7 9
$2,700,001 - $2,850,000 2,700,001 7T - 2,850,000 7T 5 4
$2,850,001 - $3,000,000 2,850,001 7T - 3,000,000 7T 3 4
$3,000,001 - $3,150,000 3,000,001 7T - 3,150,000 7& 1 -
$3,150,001 - $3,300,000 3,150,001 7T - 3,300,000 7& 1 -
$3,300,001 - $3,450,000 3,300,001 7T - 3,450,000 & 3 -
$3,450,001 - $3,600,000 3,450,001 7T - 3,600,000 7T 1 1
$3,600,001 - $3,750,000 3,600,001 7T - 3,750,000 & - 1
$3,750,001 - $3,900,000 3,750,001 7T - 3,900,000 7© - =
$3,900,001 - $4,050,000 3,900,001 7T - 4,050,000 7© - 1
$4,050,001 - $4,200,000 4,050,001 7T - 4,200,000 7T 1 -
$4,200,001 - $4,350,000 4,200,001 7T - 4,350,000 7T 1 -
$4,350,001 - $6,450,000 4,350,001 7T - 6,450,000 7T = =
$6,450,001 - $6,600,000 6,450,001 7T - 6,600,000 7T 1 1
55 60

Note:

BT -

EMFZBEEERR  BEEUZANRE
MR AER - BEENGHRENA
1,076,000 7T (ZZE = —%F : 1,104,0007T)
&85 8BS M hEr B4 A 423,000 7T
ZB - —4F 1 426,0007T) °

Benefits in kind include medical insurance, leave
provision and on-campus accommodation. The notional
rental value of the President’s Lodge is $1,076,000
(2021: $1,104,000) and each flat of the staff quarters is
$423,000 (2021: $426,000).
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25.

Employee benefits expenses (Continued)

(b)  Key management personnel compensation

The key management of the Group and the University
refers to those senior managements having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Group and the University and their
compensations are analysed as follows:

25

EEEFIR X (&)
(Z) TBERABHM
AEERHANIEERABEGRNA

BERE - G AL E R AE D
MERERAE PN EFEMANAT

Group and University AR&E@ERHK

Salaries, wages and allowances TE& - &BNFn=Eas
Employer’s contribution to retirement schemes EEHRKRSHR
Provision for gratuities and unutilised annual leave 495w B & Aok ST EREE R 8

26.

70

(c)  Noremuneration or other emoluments has been paid to
any Council members in respect of their honorary services
provided to the Group.

Taxation

The University and one of its subsidiary, The EdUHK Schools
Limited, are exempted from paying Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue
of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

The other subsidiary of the University, EQUHK SCPE, is subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for EdUHK SCPE has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as EAUHK SCPE has no assessable profit for the year
ended 30 June 2022 (2021: Nil).
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2022 2021
$°000 $°000

Fi Fit
26,893 26,574
2,321 2,308
1,758 905
30,972 29,787

(A) MERESKEHEREREGRESGN
i Y ER A AT RN

BiIR

BRIB(BISGRDI)E 88 BAREMBE AR Z
— ERBERBENBERBRRF  HEHR
BREBIEHR

BARNZ—MBRR - HEHEBR - ARRE
BHEH  ARBEREERLRBEERE
o _EFRAZTHEFENEFRMNE(ZF
——F R BAVBEMRIZARFEH
BERELTBNEHRERE -



Notes to the Financial Statements | 13§ R & Kis:

THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B # & A2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 B &#BF5N - BT & BB M 81 )

27. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement 27 ZEBRERERMEE
(a)  Cash generated from operations () SEEENRS
Group &5
2022 2021
Note $°000 §’000
st Fr T
(Deficit)/surplus for the year REE (BR), /B4 (30,134) 81,915
Adjustments for: AEIER
- Depreciation -IE 3 148,001 132,281
- Management fees for investment portfolios - #ZEHAHNEERE 3,242 2,976
- Loss on disposal of property, plant and -HEWE - e N REEIE
equipment 68 1
- Net loss/(gain) from financial assets measured -ZAABEIABZNSH
at fair value through profit or loss BEREFER (Ha) 23 48,901 (63,295)
- Grants released from deferred capital funds - EEBEEEARESHED S 14 (146,404) (130,049)
- Interest income -FBUA 23 (7,707) (14,211)
- Exchange differences -EHERE 86 -
Changes in working capital: EEESNEE
-Increase in contract assets -AKEEN (1,485) (18,058)
- Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable, -FEURBESR © S RIEfERIE
deposits and prepayments B () 19,763 (15,709)
- Increase in contract liabilities -BRBEEM 11,241 7,230
- Increase in accounts payable and accruals - FESTBRZR I FE 5T R IE 1 5,465 18,329
- Increase in provision for employee benefits - R B @A EIE N 2,528 323
- (Decrease)/increase in deferred income SEFEWA CRA) /120 (8,052) 48,932
Cash generated from operations EEELNES 45,513 50,665
(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (2) kEmETBHHNAELNER

Group F=5E

2022 2021
Note $°000 $°000
st Fr T
Deferred capital funds EEELED
Balance at 1 July 2021/2020 R-B-— —B-FF
tHA—BN&EE 14 1,715,312 1,744,486
Changes from financing cash flows: KEBER T L 2 E) -
- Grants and donations received for additions - A& E Y% « 2SN RE
of property, plant and equipment Fri e Bh & KB 179,985 95,605
Other changes: R fh %
- Grants released from deferred capital funds - BIEEEAE LA LE
to statement of comprehensive income Wk M & 14 (146,404) (130,049)
- Non-cash additions of property, plant and - MBS R ERER
equipment JEIR S BN 1,493 5,270
Balance at 30 June 2022/2021 R-E-= —E=-—&
RAZTHWEF 14 1,750,386 1,715,312
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28. Capital commitments 28 BEARKIE

As at 30 June 2022, the Group and the University had capital RZZZZFRA=TH XEBRBAREHE
commitments on leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures as MERE RAREBNERFENT
follows:

Group and University &R HK

2022 2021
$7000 $°000
T Tt
Contracted but not provided for EEABRBE 112,304 153,380
29. Other commitments 29 HithRiE

(@)  Asat30June 2022, the Group and the University had future (F) RZZZZFAA=ZFTRH  AFEEHK
aggregate minimum lease receipts under operating leases in RBEHEMEZ T AITHHEERE 2 RK

respect of rental properties as follows: REEGWF@BENT -

Group and University Z&E KK

2022 2021
$°000 §°000
T Tt
Within one year —FR 275 242
The leases typically run for a period of one to three years. HENHB-—RAM—Z=F KAEEME
Leases are usually reviewed annually to reflect the market HeFEUEE  URumHEES -
rentals.

(b)  Asat30 June 2022, cash funds of $9,497,000 (2021: () RZEZZFRA=Z1+8B BAREL
$9,281,000) mainly representing Students’ Union G H 00T E (T = —F:
membership fees were held by the University on behalf of 9,281,0007T) - ZE ST ERBELGEE
the Students’ Union for settlement of relevant expenditure. WAEINEESH -
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30. Related party transactions

Other than those disclosed in Note 8(a) and Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements, the University undertook the

following significant transactions with The EQUHK Schools Limited

and the EAUHK SCPE during the year.

Outsourced management fee income SNHIET T B YA
Rental income GEEAUON
(@) Outsourced management fee income was charged by the

University in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by
both parties.

Rental income was charged in accordance with the terms
mutually agreed by both parties.

Notes to the Financial Statements | B3R & HsE

30 AEAXS
BToAMBEREMEe(F) RIS LARE
Oh o BARE NG ERESHE ASHBERAR
ARRBESESRETTIEARS -

2022 2021

Note $°000 §°000
Hiat Fx T
(a) (FF) 6 12
(b)(Z) 360 113

() SMAIRTTIER B UR A TOARIE & 75 5 3 M0 163K
FRHUAUER ©

(Z) MW ATHRIEEETT 5k 60 1FFRUER -
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31. Involvement in unconsolidated structured entity 31 HEAHAEEEERPIES
The Group holds interests in an unlisted unit trust. The purpose of REEFEIF IHEMEAPHRE - ZRED
the investment is to generate investment income for the Group. B R REBS IR E W -

The table below sets out interests held by the Group in an AREBRIFEEHAEABERMFERII W

unconsolidated structured entity. The maximum exposure to loss T AEERARRAFENEREENREE
is the carrying amount of the financial assets held. (=

2022 2021

Carrying amount Carryingamount

included in includedin

financial assets financial assets

Totalnet  measured at fair Totalnet  measured at fair

Number of assets of value through Number of assets of value through

investee funds investee funds profit or loss investee funds investee funds profit or loss

BEtARAAEE BRARAAEE

HRERE  HARRENEH BiREEE  HABERNER

HREACHE BFEE  EENBRHDR  WREESYE BFEE  EENRELE

$°000 $°000 $°000 §°000

Fr i T T

(Note9) (Note 9)

GipE) GiE)

Investment in unlisted I EMER

unit trust EHRE 1 1,149,404 1,149 1 1,204,176 1,435
The Group can redeem unit in the above unit trust upon request. AREE A A R EAEFER D ZRERRE -
During the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2022, the Group did not BE-_Z-—FR-ZF-__FRA=ZTHIEFE
provide any financial support to the unconsolidated structured AN REBRRFEHAELEBEEREM NX
entity and has no intention of providing support of any kind in the o WESRRREY H B
near future.
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32. Possible impact of amendments, new standards and 32 EEREHEKREBREZFE 2N

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the A=1+HIEEEEMMEE - T
year ended 30 June 2022 BN B pe s R py 22 &
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA BERUBHRERTER  BEGFHOASEEM
hasissued a number of amendments and a new standard, HKFRS ZIEEFT R—IBFET &R - (B BMBWEAER])D
17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year BT - RBEL  ERE-T - _FRA=T
ended 30 June 2022 and which have not been adopted in these HIEFERMARERIORBEEAMBIRETA - 8
financial statements. These include the following which may be FEAT R EERNAREEHLER -

relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after
R TP ARk 2 B S E EIR 4K

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the conceptual framework 1 January 2022
(BB BMELRDE 35 (EFT) - B SER)H 5 T -F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022
(ERGFHERDE 1658 (BR]) - W% - B RRE - ERIFREEAMREAN ZER —ZT-—F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous contracts - cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022
(BB EFHERDE TS (BR]) - BREMAL : BITAKIMMKA —Z-—f—H—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle 1 January 2022
(BAEUBRELA T N\FE_Z_TF 2 FEUE 2 =
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
(ERGFERDE 15 (8] - HA BRI —Z-=F%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, 1 January 2023
Disclosure of accounting policies

(BB EFERDE 15 (B7]) M(ABMBRELRNEBAE)IE 25 (BE]) - SFtBR 2B E —ZT-=F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023
(EBEFERDE 8 (BR]) - Fathat 2 EH —T-=%—H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the REBBR IV EZ ST R ERTEHNER
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of ERPHELEZZE - HENAL  AEEHE
initial application. So far it has concluded the adoption of them B RAZFETNMER IR e gmETE
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial REB L E BRI AR -

statements.
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